
This will be a hybrid meeting held in person in the Village Council Chambers with a remote participation option available via Zoom due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The Village of Beverly Hills will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audiotapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities attending the meeting upon three 
working days’ notice to the Village. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Village by writing or 
phone, 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Beverly Hills, MI 48025 (248) 646-6404. 

Village of Beverly Hills             Municipal Building 
Regular Village Council Meeting               18500 W. 13 Mile Road  
Tuesday, October 19, 2021                            7:30 p.m. 
 

Zoom link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85676731937 
Meeting ID:  856 7673 1937 
Dial in: 1-646-876-9923 (US)  

 
AGENDA 

Roll Call/Call to order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Amendments to Agenda/Approve Agenda 
 
Community Announcements 
 
Public Comments on items not on the published agenda 
 
Consent Agenda 
1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held October 5, 2021. 
2. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, October 11, 2021. 
3. Set public hearing date to receive comments on 2022 Community Development Block Grant 

funding allocation for Tuesday, November 16, 2021.  
 

Business Agenda 
1. Review and consider subcommittee’s recommendation for an appointment to the Zoning Board of 

Appeals. 
2. Review and consider Parks & Recreation Board’s recommendation to reinstate a Buy-a-Brick 

Fundraising Program. 
3. Review and consider request for site plan approval for a mixed-use development at 31655 

Southfield Road, Goddard School. 
4. Review and consider resolution authorizing the cooperative purchase of self-contained breathing 

apparatus for the Public Safety Department through the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program. 
5. Review and consider hiring Village Manager search firm. 

 
Public comments  
 
Manager’s report 
 
Council comments 
 
Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85676731937


REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 5, 2021 – PAGE 1 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Present: President George; President Pro-Tem Hrydziuszko; Members: Abboud, 

Kecskemeti, Mooney, O’Gorman, and Peddie   

 George participated remotely via Zoom from Beverly Hills, Michigan due to the 

COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

Absent: None 

  

Also Present: Village Manager, Wilson via Zoom 

Village Clerk / Assistant Manager, Rutkowski via Zoom 

Village Attorney, Ryan 

Public Safety Director, Torongeau 

 

President George called the regular Village Council meeting to order at 7:34 p.m. in the Village 

Council Chambers located at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 and via 

Zoom. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those in attendance.  

 

AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA/APPROVE AGENDA 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, to amend the agenda to remove Business Agenda 

Item #6: Review and consider request for site plan approval for a mixed-use development at 31655 

Southfield Road, Goddard School, based on the appeal filed.   

  

Motion passed. 

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Hrydziuszko, to approve the agenda as amended.  

 

 Motion passed.  

 

COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, be it resolved, the consent agenda is approved as published. 

1. Review and consider approval of minutes of a regular Council meeting held September 21, 2021. 

2. Review and file bills recapped as of Monday, September 27, 2021.  

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

BUSINESS AGENDA 

ACCEPT VILLAGE MANAGER CHRIS WILSON’S LETTER OF RESIGNATION  

George referenced Mr. Wilson’s resignation letter that was provided in the Council meeting 

packet.  He stated that Wilson had been at the Village for thirteen years and has done great work. 

Wilson will continue in his role as Village Manager until November 30, 2021.  

 

C1 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 5, 2021 – PAGE 2 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Abboud, the Beverly Hills Village Council accepts the 

resignation of Village Manager Chris Wilson effective November 30, 2021.  

 

Motion passed.  

 

DISCUSS VILLAGE MANAGER SEARCH PROCESS 

Mooney provided an update on behalf of the Personnel Committee, which is made up of President 

George, Councilmember Kecskemeti, and Councilmember Mooney. The Committee put together 

a timeline of action items which includes accepting Mr. Wilson’s resignation, conducting a search 

for a new Village Manager, and establishing duties for an Interim Village Manager.  The 

Committee is working to obtain a scope of services, capabilities, and pricing references for search 

firms and plans to bring a recommendation to Council at the October 19, 2021 regular Council 

meeting. They anticipate the search will stretch into the first quarter of 2022.  They are discussing 

candidates for the interim position and plan to have formalized assignments by the first meeting in 

November. All Council members will be involved in the interview process. They welcomed 

Council input on the process.  

 

Karen Gilbert, Amherst, asked if the community would be involved in the Village Manager search 

process.  

 

Mooney confirmed that the community would be involved in the process and actions related to 

hiring a Village Manager would be taken at open meetings.  

 

Motion by Mooney, second by Peddie, the Beverly Hills Village Council authorizes the 

Personnel Committee to implement the presented outline regarding the Village Manager 

search. Moreover, the Committee requests input from the Council by email and such email 

will be directed to the Personnel Committee and will copy the Village Clerk for the record. 

Further, the Committee intends to report back at the next regularly scheduled meeting 

regarding the search firm and will discuss the Interim Village management team on 

November 2, 2021.  

 

Motion passed.  

 

SECOND ANNOUNCEMENT OF A VACANCY ON THE ZONING BOARD OF 

APPEALS 

Rutkowski stated that there is a full-member vacancy on the Zoning Board of Appeals for a partial 

term ending June 30, 2023.  

 

The ZBA meets the second Monday of the month at 7:30 p.m. as necessary. The ZBA hears appeals 

of applicants who request exceptions from or official interpretations of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Members must decide whether or not a physical hardship or practical difficulty exists which 

justifies the granting of a variance. 

 

All interested and eligible residents of Beverly Hills are encouraged to apply to become a member 

of the ZBA. Applications are available on the Village website or by emailing the Village Clerk at 

krutkowski@villagebeverlyhills.com. Applications may be submitted to the Clerk’s office via 

email, regular mail, in person, or using the drop box located outside the Village office (18500 W. 

13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025). 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 5, 2021 – PAGE 3 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

 

Applications are due Friday, October 8, 2021.  

 

This constitutes the second announcement of a vacancy on the Zoning Board of Appeals.  

 

REVIEW AND CONSIDER RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE VILLAGE OF 

BEVERLY HILLS PATHWAYS PROJECT GRANT APPLICATION 

George gave an overview of the proposed pathways project, grant application, and resolution of 

support. The resolution spells out the projected cost of the project, the requested grant amount and 

the costs to the Village should the grant be awarded and accepted.   As stated previously, 

submission of the grant application does not obligate the Village to accept the award or make any 

expenditures.   

 

Motion by Abboud, second by Hrydziuszko, be is resolved, the Beverly Hills Village 

Council adopts the following Resolution to Support the Village of Beverly Hills Pathways 

Plan to Connect 13 Mile Road, Evergreen Road, and 14 Mile Road with a 40 Percent Match 

for the Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) Grant: 

 

WHEREAS, The Village of Beverly Hills desires to expand and enhance its safe pathway 

network and create a critically needed connection for bicyclists and pedestrians along 13 

Mile Road, 14 Mile Road, and Evergreen Road; 

  

WHEREAS, The proposed pathways will provide a safe route along 13 Mile Road, 14 

Mile Road, and Evergreen Road and provide residents access to schools and public parks; 

 

WHEREAS, The federally funded Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) provides 

grants for projects such as bicycle facilities and shared use paths; 

 

WHEREAS, The Village deems it would be in the best interest of the public safety and 

welfare and promote the connectedness of transit, residential and commercial areas of the 

Village. 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Beverly Hills Village Council hereby 

authorizes: 

1. To support a $3,550,000.00 project to improve access and safety between public, 

residential, and commercial areas of the Village. 

 

2. To pursue the design and construction of path connections dedicated for bicyclists and 

pedestrians along 13 Mile Road, 14 Mile Road, and Evergreen Road providing 

connections to portions of the Village's existing pathway network. 

 
3. To pursue a Transportation Alternatives Program grant with the Michigan Department 

of Transportation for 60% of the $2,800,000.00 construction cost, which is 
$1,680,000.00. 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 5, 2021 – PAGE 4 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

4. To commit to pay the local match for the TAP grant for an amount equal to 40% of 
the construction cost, which is $1,120,000.00. 
 

5. To commit to pay the cost of engineering, financial, legal and administrative services to 

design and supervise construction of the paths in the amount of $750,000. 

 

6. To utilize local funding totaling $1,870,000.00 to implement a project that will benefit 

both the residents and visitors to the Village. 

 

Roll Call Vote:  

Motion passed (7-0) 

 

DISCUSS HALLOWEEN HOOT 

Rutkowski stated that there have not been any COVID-19 safety protocol updates for outdoor 

gatherings issued by the County since the last meeting and that the Parks & Recreation Board is 

planning on moving forward with the modified Halloween Hoot as discussed at the last regular 

Village Council meeting. 

 

Abboud stated that if things get worse in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic, that there is a chance 

that the event could be further modified or even canceled.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None. 

 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

Consumers Greenfield Road Closure – The Village received notice this week that Consumers 

Energy has requested to extend their permit for a partial closure of Greenfield Rd. through the end 

of October.  I have requested a conference call with the Road Commission to discuss this request.   

This project has been delayed and the road closure already extended multiple times.   Consumers 

is also working on another project on 13 Mile and the Village has been unable to obtain a projected 

completion date for this project.   These projects along our major roads and in proximity to our 

schools continue to cause disruption to daily traffic and are a significant inconvenience to residents 

in the impacted area.   I want some assurance from Consumers that restoration of traffic flow is 

part of their consideration in their project management.  I will update Council as to how these 

discussions proceed.   

 

Concrete Pavement Repair Program – The Village held a pre-construction meeting with 

Cipparrone Contracting for this fall’s concrete repair program.  Weather permitting, the project 

will begin on October 11th.  The contractor will be replacing sections of concrete pavement on 

Chelton Dr., Carriage Lane, Old Post Rd, Old Coach Rd, Red Oaks Trail, White Oaks Trail and 

Cline Drive.  The project is scheduled to be completed by November 19th.  One way traffic will be 

maintained at all times for the duration of the project.   HRC will begin the notification process to 

impacted homeowners. 

 

ARPA Funds – The Village has yet to receive our $1.086 million payment due from the American 

Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).  Finance Director McCarthy is in communication with the Michigan 

Department of Treasury and the funds should be arriving soon.  Per communication with our 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 5, 2021 – PAGE 5 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

auditors, these funds will be deposited in a Special Revenue Fund, Fund 287.  From that fund, the 

Council can allocate the proceeds to any project so desired.  The report on ARPA funds deadline 

has been extended. Village Administration will report back as to the contents and submission of 

this report.  As discussed at previous Council meetings, the Village will need, at some point, to 

make decisions about how to allocate these funds per the terms of the American Rescue Plan Act.   

 

Beverly Park Bike Trail Inspection – Village Administration met with a representative from 

MMRMA to inspect the bike trail.  MMRMA provided useful guidance on trail construction and 

maintenance as well as signage that will be incorporated into the trail.   Many of the suggestions 

regarding maintenance schedules and record keeping are applicable not just to the bike trail but 

other features in the park and will be incorporated where appropriate.    

 

OPEB Report – Wilson provided for Council’s review a copy of an analysis done by Nyhart to 

evaluate our current contribution levels to our Retiree Health Care Fund.   As a reminder, the 

Village currently pays for all annual Retiree Health Care (RHC) from our Retiree Health Care 

Fund and contributes an amount of $400,000 to the Fund.  This $400,000 is split between the 

General Fund and the Public Safety Fund, with the majority coming from the Public Safety Fund.  

Nyhart ran two separate projections.  The first was based on a continued contribution level of 

$400,000 until the fund was 100% funded.  This projection would have all OPEB costs fully funded 

by FY 2032.  With no additional contributions the fund would have a surplus for a period of a few 

years and would end in FYE 2053 at a funding level of 91.5% with net position of $6.6 million 

and an unfunded liability of just over $600,000.  

 

The second analysis was more aggressive with the Village fully funding all current RCH costs 

(pay as you go) until all OPEB costs were fully funded.  This would occur in FYE 2029, at which 

point there would be no further contributions to the RHC fund.  Annual contributions would vary 

from $665,000 to $890,000.   Under this scenario the fund would be over funded to the tune of 

around $3.2 million as of FYE 2030.  Due to projected fund returns, the overfunding would grow 

to $13.9 million by FYE 2053.  Once funds are dedicated to OPEB costs they cannot, under current 

legal statutes, be reallocated for other purposes.  Accordingly, such levels of overfunding should 

be avoided.    

 

Based upon these two scenarios, Village Administration would recommend continuing the 

contribution level of $400,000 annually for the nest 2-3 budget years.   At that time this analysis 

should be done again to determine if modifications to the contribution level are appropriate.   

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Peddie provided an update on the Planning Commission’s discussion from their last meeting 

regarding fences and trees. Specifically, she commented on the vegetation exception for fences 

and possibly requiring the Village’s arborist to review requests. She commented on concerns over 

the 200’ rule as it pertains to the vegetation exception. She suggested a Council subcommittee 

meet with Administration on these concerns and bring a recommendation back to Council.  Finally, 

she asked if there was any appetite from Council for the Planning Commission to revisit the tree 

ordinance because there have been concerns over clear cutting lots.  

 

Abboud stated that the SEMCOG General Assembly meeting will be held October 14, 2021. He 

reported on his attendance at the MML Convention on September 22-24 in Grand Rapids. The 

theme of the Convention was Trust and Belonging. He also attended the Elected Officials 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – OCTOBER 5, 2021 – PAGE 6 

 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL. THEY HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL. 

 

Academy Board of Directors meeting where they recommended various ways to obtain credits for 

the different EOA levels. He encouraged residents to check on their neighbors during storms. He 

stated October is Cancer Awareness Month and sends his blessings to all those who are struggling.  

 

Mooney gave a history of Village finances from around the time when Manager Wilson was hired. 

He stated that Wilson worked diligently to help get the millage renewal passed during the 

recession. He stated that Wilson’s presentations and efforts were remarkable and eventually the 

millage passed in 2010.  He said Wilson played a key part in helping to save the library and 

maintain the Public Safety Department at a decent level. In short, Wilson helped make the Village 

fiscally sound and reduce debt, specifically in its retirement and health care obligations.  He 

thanked Wilson for helping make Beverly Hills one of the safest communities in Michigan and his 

work to help secure dash cams and state of the art technology for the Public Safety Department. 

He applauded Wilson for being hands-on working in the parks, hanging signs during the pandemic, 

and even assisting with garbage collection. He thanked Wilson for everything he has done for the 

Village of Beverly Hills.   

 

Hrydziuszko stated that the Movie in the Park has been rescheduled for Saturday, October 9th.  She 

echoed Mooney’s sentiments regarding Mr. Wilson. She said Wilson has taught her a lot and he 

leaves big shoes to fill. She appreciates his friendship and hard work.  While she is sad to see him 

go, she is happy for him and his family.  

 

George stated that he will miss Wilson’s humor. He hopes to obtain as much institutional 

knowledge from Wilson as he can while he is still at the Village. He noted that he is attending the 

meeting virtually via Zoom because he was in contact with someone who tested positive for the 

coronavirus, does not have symptoms, but is playing it safe.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by Mooney, second by Abboud, to adjourn the meeting at 8:25 p.m.  

 

Motion passed.  

 

 

 

 

John George     Kristin Rutkowski   

Council President    Village Clerk   



TO PRESIDENT GEORGE & MEMBERS OF THE VILLAGE COUNCIL.   THE FOLLOWING IS A LIST OF

EXPENDITURES FOR APPROVAL.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE RUN FROM 09/28/2021 THROUGH 10/11/2021.

ACCOUNT TOTALS:

101 GENERAL FUND $167,521.81

202 MAJOR ROAD FUND $11,159.55

203 LOCAL STREET FUND $34,216.36

205 PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT FUND $40,289.67

208 PARK IMPROVEMENT FUND $1,743.34

401 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND $81,744.00

592 WATER/SEWER OPERATION FUND $283,081.33

701 TRUST & AGENCY FUND $236.00

TOTAL $619,992.06

MANUAL CHECKS- COMERICA $0.00

MANUAL CHECKS- INDEPENDENT $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $619,992.06

GRAND TOTAL $619,992.06

C2



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS 1/1Page: 10/07/2021 02:26 PM
User: JAY
DB: Beverly Hills

CHECK DATE FROM 10/11/2021 - 10/11/2021

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank COM COMERICA

99.05 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES6021784396COM10/11/2021
250.00 ANDREW MCCULLOCH6056884397COM10/11/2021
160.80 ARROW OFFICE SUPPLY CO.5180284398COM10/11/2021
250.00 ASCENSION OF CHRIST LUTHERAN CHURCH6055984399COM10/11/2021
250.00 BENJAMIN MCKINNEY5890684400COM10/11/2021

81,744.00 BERGER CHEVROLET5358584401COM10/11/2021
31.57 BEVERLY HILLS ACE5140984402COM10/11/2021

35,226.17 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD5207184403COM10/11/2021
125.00 BOB ADAMS TOWING5048984404COM10/11/2021
145.00 BRIAN WOOD6055784405COM10/11/2021
250.00 CAROLINE OLSEN6056784406COM10/11/2021
23.83 CINTAS CORPORATION #315934784407COM10/11/2021
858.00 CLEANNET5932384408COM10/11/2021
45.01 COMCAST5143984409COM10/11/2021

28,390.48 COMEAU EQUIPMENT CO INC.0450084410COM10/11/2021
250.00 DEBORAH KENT5992584411COM10/11/2021

6,437.68 DTE ENERGY5138584412COM10/11/2021
250.00 DUSTIN WHITE6056284413COM10/11/2021
347.00 EAGLE LANDSCAPING & SUPPLY6037284414COM10/11/2021
80.83 ELI BAYLESS6056984415COM10/11/2021
250.00 GAIL DISNER6056384416COM10/11/2021

17,733.47 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0850084417COM10/11/2021
290.00 HYDROCORP5895084418COM10/11/2021
51.00 J.C. EHRLICH5983984419COM10/11/2021

8,126.25 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY3907084420COM10/11/2021
640.00 JAMES HEALY5942384421COM10/11/2021

2,543.00 JASON'S OUTDOOR SERVICES LLC5915884422COM10/11/2021
250.00 JENNIFER SHAND6056084423COM10/11/2021
270.00 LANG'S ON-SITE SERVICES5331684424COM10/11/2021
250.00 LATOYA TILLMAN6033484425COM10/11/2021
334.00 LORI LANGEVIN BROWN6057084426COM10/11/2021
250.00 MARY CALLAHAN6055884427COM10/11/2021
28.94 MATTHEW GOODRICH5970384428COM10/11/2021
250.00 MELISSA RINGEY4955684429COM10/11/2021
25.00 MICHIGAN GRAPHICS & AWARDS5203084430COM10/11/2021

1,466.92 MIKE SAVOIE CHEVROLET 5933084431COM10/11/2021
236.00 MUNIWEB5890384432COM10/11/2021
60.00 NATIONAL ASSOC. OF CHIEFS OF POLICE5907384433COM10/11/2021
153.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER &5118284434COM10/11/2021

43,375.00 NEXT 5911284435COM10/11/2021
976.50 NYE UNIFORM EAST5179984436COM10/11/2021

205,367.10 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER'S5083084437COM10/11/2021
13,410.00 PLANTE & MORAN, PLLC3003584438COM10/11/2021

60.00 PTS COMMUNICATIONS6038684439COM10/11/2021
179.97 RAPID RESPONSE5912284440COM10/11/2021
600.00 RYAN BILLS6049584441COM10/11/2021

35,451.00 S.O.C.R.R.A.1650084442COM10/11/2021
70,875.41 S.O.C.W.A.1660084443COM10/11/2021
51,070.24 SAFEBUILT INC. 5928284444COM10/11/2021

250.00 SHANTEL BELL5964984445COM10/11/2021
250.00 SHARON KIRSCH6056684446COM10/11/2021
250.00 SHERRY TSAI6056584447COM10/11/2021
250.00 TANYA DUNCAN6056184448COM10/11/2021

8,000.00 THOMAS J RYAN PC.3104384449COM10/11/2021
266.39 VERIZON WIRELESS MESSAGING3820584450COM10/11/2021
280.00 WILLIAM WEGERT6056484451COM10/11/2021
658.45 WOW! BUSINESS5357284452COM10/11/2021

COM TOTALS:

619,992.06 Total of 57 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
619,992.06 Total of 57 Checks:



C3 

 

 

To:  Honorable President George; Members of Village Council  
Chris Wilson, Village Manager 

From:   Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 

Subject: 2022 Community Development Block Grant Public Hearing 

Date:     October 14, 2021 

 
The Village of Beverly hills participates as a sub-recipient for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
funding through a partnership with Oakland County. The County has notified us that applications for 
Program Year 2022 are due on December 17, 2021. One of the requirements for receiving Community 
Development Block Grant funding is to hold a public hearing to review the upcoming year’s CDBG proposal 
prior to submittal. Therefore, it is recommended that we schedule a public hearing date of Tuesday, 
November 16, 2021 for review of the Program Year 2022 Community Development Block Grant proposal.  

 
Suggested Motion 
Village Council directs Administration to notice a Public Hearing to be held on Tuesday, November 16, 
2021 at 7:30 p.m. to receive comments on the proposal for the 2022 Community Development Block 
Grant funding allocation.   
 



B1 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
Chris Wilson, Village Manager 

 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Zoning Board of Appeals Appointment  
 
Date:   October 14, 2021            
 
There is a vacancy on the Zoning Board of Appeals for a partial term ending June 30, 2023. 
Announcements of the vacancy were made at the September 21 and October 5, 2021 Village Council 
meetings. 
 
The Village received 3 applications for the vacancy. We appreciate everyone who applied to serve on the 
Board. 
 
A subcommittee has been formed consisting of members O’Gorman (chair), Mooney, and Peddie to 
review the applications and make a recommendation to Council.  The subcommittee will meet with the 
applicants at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 19, 2021 in the conference room at the Village Office 
located at 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 and then offer a recommendation during the 
regularly scheduled Council meeting.  
 
Suggestion resolution: 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council appoints ________ to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a 
partial term ending June 30, 2023.   



B2 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George, Village Council Members 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Buy-A-Brick Program at Beverly Park 
 
Date:   October 14, 2021 
 
The Parks & Recreation Board has been discussing reinstating the Buy-A-Brick Program at Beverly Park. 
The fundraising program was most recently suspended in 2018. Through this program, residents and local 
businesses can purchase engraved bricks to be installed at Beverly Park. In the past, individual orders were 
submitted to the Village and then Administration placed a large order with the vendor once many orders 
were compiled. The intent is to temporarily open the ordering window for a few months this fall/winter 
to have bricks ready to be installed next spring.  
 
Administration and Board members researched different vendors that provide the brick engraving 
fundraising service. At their September 15, 2021 meeting, the Parks & Recreation Board reviewed vendors 
and selected Brick Markers USA.  The Board took into consideration all of the additional services provided 
by Brick Markers USA when making their decision, such as website and form creation and free shipping. 
These services are outlined in the attached email dated August 5, 2021.  
 
The Board also discussed the cost of bricks and how much to charge donors. The funds raised by this 
program will go toward the Tree Fund for the purchase of trees in Village parks. The Village of Beverly Hills 
Parks and Recreation Board recommended Council approve their request to reinstate the Buy-A-Brick 
Fundraising Program at Beverly Park with the rate of $60.00 for a 4x8 engraved brick and $120.00 for an 
8x8 engraved brick. 
 
Village Attorney Ryan has reviewed a proposed agreement with the vendor and has prepared a memo for 
your review as well (attached). 
 
While it has not been used in a few years, the Village does have a line item created for the Buy-a-Brick  
pass through funds (Account Number 101-000-675.04).  
 
Suggested Resolution: 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council approves the Parks & Recreation Board’s request to 
reinstate the Buy-a-Brick Fundraising Program at Beverly Park with the rate of $60.00 for a 4x8” engraved 
brick and $120.00 for an 8x8” engraved brick.  Be it further resolved that that Council authorizes Village 
Administration to execute the agreement with Brick Markers USA for the purchase of engraved bricks.  
 
Attachments 





October 13, 2021 

Ms. Kristin Rutkowski 
Village of Beverly Hills 
18500 W. 13 Mile Rd 
Beverly Hills, MI  48025 

Dear Ms. Rutkowski: 

Welcome to Brick Markers USA, Inc. (BMI).  We want to thank you for choosing us as 
your brick engraving company.  We are very excited about working with you and making 
your campaign a complete success! 

All of us at BMI are committed to providing you, our client, with superior customer 
service and satisfaction.  We will work closely with you from the beginning stages of 
creating your brochure to confirming the completed product has arrived as promised. 

Choosing BMI as your brick engraving company means you have chosen a company 
that guarantees uncompromising quality and will provide valuable, innovative fund 
raising and marketing ideas. 

We have attached our agreement for your review and signature.  This agreement will 
guarantee our current pricing structure for one year, regardless of any cost increase we 
may incur from our suppliers. 

Please sign the original and return via email. I will also sign the agreement and send you 
a fully executed agreement via email for your records. Once the executed agreement is 
received by you / your organization, we will send you text compiling documents for your 
ordering convenience. 

If you should have any questions, or if we can be of further assistance, please feel free 
to contact your sales representative, Jack Benigno, at 1-800-634-8948 ext. 227. 

Sincerely, 

Sharon Rieck 
President 

SJR/ch 
enclosure



AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this day by and between Village of Beverly Hills (“Buyer”) and Brick Markers USA®, Inc., (BMI) 
a Florida Corporation (“Seller”). 

1. Description of Products, Services, Price:  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Buyer hereby agrees to purchase all engraved bricks, pavers and/or tiles, together with the services of Seller for 
the duration of the Village of Beverly Hills brick/tile campaign project.  Buyer will not purchase engraved bricks, pavers 
and/or tiles or services from any other vendor for the brick/tile campaign project.  Brick Markers USA®, Inc. will honor the 
following pricing structure for a period of one year from the executed date of this agreement -  
Standard sized unit pricing is based on a combination of bricks and tiles, and of sizes.  Example:  (95) 4x8x2¼ bricks and (5) 8x8x2¼ bricks equate to a 
100 brick order combination: 

Order Quantity Description of Process Brick or Tile Size/Color Unit Price 
2501-5000 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 3 lines / 20 characters 4x8/TBD $16.00 
100-2500 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 3 lines / 20 characters 4x8/TBD $18.00 

50-99 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 3 lines / 20 characters 4x8/TBD $20.00 

5-49 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 3 lines / 20 characters 4x8/TBD $35.00 

1-4* Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 3 lines / 20 characters 4x8/TBD $35.00* 

2501-5000 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 6 lines / 20 characters 8x8/TBD $26.00 
100-2500 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 6 lines / 20 characters 8x8/TBD $30.00 
50-99 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 6 lines / 20 characters 8x8/TBD $32.00 
5-49 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 6 lines / 20 characters 8x8/TBD $44.00 
1-4* Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 6 lines / 20 characters 8x8/TBD $44.00* 

*A $15.00 per brick handling fee applies
Mini-brick unit pricing is based on a combination of sizes.  Example:  (85) 1x3x5/8 bricks and (15) 3x3x/5/8 bricks equate 
to a 100 mini-brick order combination: 

Order Quantity Description of Process Brick Size/Color Unit Price 
2501-5000 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 3 lines / 20 characters 1x3/TBD $5.50 

100-2500 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 3 lines / 20 characters 1x3/TBD $6.00 

2501-5000 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 6 lines / 20 characters 3x3/TBD $7.50 
100-2500 Vitralase®/Vitrix® - 6 lines / 20 characters 3x3/TBD $8.00 

2. Payment Terms:  Payment is required within 14 days of the invoice date to schedule your order for processing.  All
laser engraving is considered custom and is subject to payment in advance. 
3. Delivery of Finished Products, Shipping:   Seller will engrave all ordered product in the Helvetica font unless
otherwise specified in writing by the Buyer. Provided that Seller has been paid in full, Seller shall sell, transfer, and deliver to 
Buyer, at the address set forth below or at a separate address stipulated by the Buyer.  The finished products (engraved 
bricks, pavers and/or tiles) will be delivered on or before date to be determined, unless such time for delivery is otherwise 
extended in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  Seller shall cause the finished products to be packaged for 
delivery in accordance with the manufacturers and the selected carrier’s recommended specifications for shipping goods of 
the same or substantially the same size and type.  Buyer is 100% responsible for any damaged product and related cost if 
the Steps to Take When Receiving Shipment document (See Exhibit “A”) are not followed.  Buyer is 100% responsible for 
any charges related to special requests for “inside delivery”.  Seller will invoice Buyer for any charges related to “inside 
delivery”.  Seller’s stipulated pricing above includes the shipping within the 48 contiguous U.S. 

The terms of this agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. The parties agree that jurisdiction 
and venue for any dispute arising out of this agreement is shall be in the state or federal courts of the State of Florida.  
The Parties agree that any and all confidential information produced as a result of this Agreement or divulged under this 
Agreement shall be maintained confidential both with regards to their employees and with regards to any 3rd Parties.  No 
3rd Party shall be allowed to review the confidential information. 

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this Agreement on the _______ day of _______________________, 2021. 

Seller:  Brick Markers USA®, Inc. Buyer:   Village of Beverly Hills 

Executed by: Sharon J. Rieck  Executed by: Print: 

Authorized Signature: Authorized Signature: 

Title: President Title: 

Address: 4430 W. Tiffany Drive  Address: 
West Palm Beach, FL  33407 



Brick Markers® USA (BMI) developed its own award-winning methods when preparing items for shipping, and it is 

rare that an order will experience damage in transit.  However, if you feel there is damage to an order upon 

arrival, DO NOT REFUSE DELIVERY.  Instead please carefully read and follow the steps below to avoid being billed 

for shipping fees incurred for delivery back to Brick Markers and/or the return trip to your location. 

WITH EVERY SHIPMENT WHETHER YOU SEE OR SUSPECT DAMAGES 

 

 

  

 

                                                                               

MUST READ IN ITS 

ENTIRETY.  CLIENT’S 

RESPONSIBILITY AT 

TIME OF DELIVERY 

FREIGHT DELIVERED ON LIFTGATE TRUCK -  (Hydraulically lowers the pallets to 

ground level) Choose your location carefully as they cannot be moved by the 

driver. 

ALL CARRIERS ARE REQUIRED TO DELIVER ON LIFTGATE TRUCK EXCEPT 

LOADPOWER (FLAT BED TRUCK).  If your order does not arrive on a Liftgate 

truck, instruct the driver to return at an agreed upon time. 

View the pallets and their structure carefully, checking that the product has not 

shifted on the pallet, wrapped in anything other than clear plastic, has straps of 

an inconsistent color or a crushed/damaged “Do Not Stack cone”. (See photo 

below).  

 AFTER VISUAL INSPECTION AND THERE IS SUSPICION FOR DAMAGE, 

YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO INSPECT THE ENTIRE SHIPMENT.  IF THE 

DRIVER REFUSES TO WAIT, CALL THE FREIGHT COMPANY (ESTES 800-

378-3748, SAIA 800-765-7242, FEDEX 866-393-4585, AAA 800-252-

0246, ABF 800-874-2061).  IF THE DRIVER STILL MUST LEAVE, WRITE 

“DAMAGED – QTY UNKNOWN” ON THE FREIGHT RECEIPT.  IF YOU 

CHOOSE NOT TO INSPECT THE ENTIRE SHIPMENT, YOU WILL NOT BE 

REIMBURSED FOR DAMAGES OTHER THAN WHAT WAS NOTED ON 

THE FREIGHT RECEIPT YOU SIGN. 

 TAKE PHOTOS OF PACKAGING AND/OR PRODUCTS IMMEDIATELY

WHILE ON PALLET. 

 BEFORE THE DRIVER LEAVES WRITE “DAMAGED” ON BOTH COPIES 

OF THE DELIVERY RECEIPT.  DO NOT SPECIFY THE DAMAGES OR 

ALLOW THE DRIVER TO COMPEL YOU TO DO SO AS THIS WILL LIMIT 

YOUR CLAIM TO WHAT WAS SPECIFIED. 

 NOTIFY YOUR SALES REPRESENTATIVE AS SOON AS POSSIBLE PRIOR

TO INSTALLATION AND WITHIN 3 DAYS OF DELIVERY. 

 UNTIL YOU RECEIVE SPECIFIC DIRECTION FROM YOUR SALES 

REPRESENTATIVE, DO NOT CONTINUE TO UNPACK OR ATTEMPT TO 

INSTALL ANY DAMAGED ITEMS. 

 RETAIN ANY AND ALL PACKAGING INCLUDING THE BOX(ES), 

DAMAGED BROKEN ITEMS, EVERYTHING!  WITHOUT THE PACKAGING

WE ARE UNABLE TO SUBMIT A CLAIM FOR DAMAGES. 

 DO NOT ASSIST THE DRIVER IN ANYWAY.  UNLOADING IS THEIR SOLE

RESPONSIBILITY.  PLEASE NOTE THERE IS A FEE FOR INSIDE DELIVERY 

AND YOU WILL BE BILLED FOR THIS SERVICE IF REQUESTED. 

 IF NO SUSPICION OF DAMAGES FOLLOWING VISUAL INSPECTION, 

YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO EXAMINE THE TOP TWO LAYERS OF BRICKS 

BEFORE THE DRIVER LEAVES.  WE STRONGLY RECOMMEND YOU DO 

THIS.  IF DRIVER REFUSES, REMEMBER TO FOLLOW 1ST BULLET POINT. 

FREIGHT DELIVERED ON FLAT BED (Referred as LOADPOWER) 

 YOU MUST HAVE A FORKLIFT WITH ADJUSTABLE FORKS AND A

FORKLIFT DRIVER ON SITE TO UNLOAD THE DELIVERY. 

 TAKE PHOTOS OF PACKAGING AND/OR PRODUCTS

IMMEDIATELY WHILE ON TRUCK. 

 BEFORE THE DRIVER LEAVES WRITE “DAMAGED” ON BOTH 

COPIES OF THE DELIVERY RECEIPT.  DO NOT SPECIFY THE 

DAMAGES OR ALLOW THE DRIVER TO COMPEL YOU TO DO SO 

AS THIS WILL LIMIT YOUR CLAIM TO WHAT WAS SPECIFIED. 

 ONCE YOU TAKE POSSESSION OF THE DELIVERY BY UNLOADING

THE TRUCK, YOU TAKE FULL RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY AND ALL 

DAMAGES. 

BMI’S GOAL IS TO PROTECT AND SUPPORT 

YOU FROM FREIGHT CARRIER MISHAPS.  

PLEASE READ AND FOLLOW THESE STEPS. 

Order Size Varies per Client. 

Images are only an example of how 

your Order should arrive.

STEPS TO TAKE WHEN RECEIVING SHIPMENT 

Brick Order Tile Order Blank Brick Order 

EXHIBIT “A” 



1

Kristin Rutkowski

From: Jack Benigno <jack@brickmarkers.com>
Sent: Thursday, August 5, 2021 4:26 PM
To: Kristin Rutkowski
Subject: Brick Markers USA - Pricing & Basic Information
Attachments: Michigan.doc

Kristin, 
 
It was a pleasure speaking with you today and I look forward to the possibility of working with you. As we discussed, I 
am sending some basic information and pricing for your immediate needs. I am sending our full brochure with three 
options for viewing as well as a list of some projects we have done in the state of Michigan. I will have the brochure and 
samples shipped out right away.  
 

 
 
High Quality PDF: http://www.brickmarkersusa.com/BrochureHiRes.pdf 
  
Download Our Brochure: http://www.brickmarkersusa.com/BrochureHiRes.zip 
 
 
To assist you in making the best decision for your engraving needs, the following is some information about the services 
we offer as well as just a few of the advantages of working with Brick Markers® USA, Inc. 
 
ADVANTAGES:  
 

 Brick Markers® provides a lifetime guarantee to our clientele.  We guarantee that the engraved text and graphics 
will not fade, chip, oxidize, peel, separate or change in any way for the life of the surface of the brick or tile.  Since 
inception of our company in 1997, none of our engraved products have ever been replaced or needed to be replaced
due to the engraving fading, chipping, oxidizing, peeling or separating. 

 Our Vitralase/Vitrix processes can be achieved on any clay brick, paver or tile.  Brick Markers® has the ability
to engrave just about anything you want on a brick or tile. We can program custom logos for corporate level
sponsors, clipart and centerpiece arrays for your project.  

 We offer various size brick and tile products to enable your organization to maximize revenue potential.  By offering 
multiple products, donors will contribute more to support your cause. 

 Our patented laser engraving and its color are both a result of 100% natural inorganic earth element materials and
use no solvents, paints, plastics or VOCs (volatile organic compounds).  This is the ultimate in “Green” technology 
and we are happy to do our part in sustaining the environment. 

 
FREE SERVICES: 
 

 Free Brochure/Order Form Samples:  We will provide you with example order forms that other organizations
have created. These will help you to see, not only what others have offered, but the design of their fliers as well.



2

 Free Donor Website:  We will create a custom website for your fundraising program.  Your donors will have the 
ability to purchase their engraved brick/tile online with ease.  We will design and host a unique website for your 
group or organization and will work with you to create a site with images and wording that best represent your
vision. 

 Free Proprietary Ordering System:  Our custom POS is a very “user friendly” system making it easy to compile
the donor’s engraving information.  Once you have completed the engraving information for your order, simply
attach it to an email to your Sales Representative and we will take it from there! 

 Free Marketing Ideas:  We can provide options to differentiate levels of giving as well as marketing ideas and
examples to help sell the bricks and increase your overall profit margins. 

 Free Shipping Within the 48 Contiguous United States:  All prices include, the brick, engraving and shipping 
within the 48 contiguous United States so there are no hidden fees which enables you to easily determine at what
price you need to sell the engraved bricks, pavers or tiles to achieve your fund raising goals. 

 Free Greek Letters & Spanish Accent Marks 
 Free True Type Fonts 
 Free Clipart Library:  Sports, Arts & Education, Animal, Miscellaneous, Religious, Holiday, Seals & Badges, Zoo &

Lettering 
 Competitive Pricing & NO MINIMUM ORDERS 
 Exemplary & Friendly Customer Service:  We are proud to provide our clientele with the most competent

customer service support in the industry.  Our experienced and devoted team of professionals is truly committed
to continuing this tradition.  It is our policy that we will always respond to your phone calls or emails within 24
hours. 

 
FEE-BASED CAMPAIGN SUPPORT: 
 

 Order Processing Center  
 Management Reporting  
 Brick/Tile Locator  
 Master Section Compiling  
 Replicas & Certificates of Authenticity  
 Brick/Tile Display Cases  
 Tile Name Plates 

 
 
VITRALASE®/VITRIX® PRICING: 
 
  
4x8x2¼  Engraved (Brick) or 3 5/8x7 5/8x1/2 (Tile) 
100-2500     $18.00 each 
50-99          $20.00 each 
5-49            $35.00 each 
1-4              $35.00 each* 
 
8x8x2¼ Engraved (Brick) or 7 5/8x7 5/8 x1/2 (Tile) 
100-2500     $30.00 each 
50-99          $32.00 each 
5-49            $44.00 each 
1-4              $44.00 each* 
 
 
1.5x3 Engraved Mini Bricks 
100-2500     $6.00 each 
50-99          $8.50 each 
5-49            $12.00 each 
1-4              $12.00 each** 
 
3x3 Engraved Mini Bricks 
100-2500     $8.00 each 
50-99          $10.50 each 



3

5-49            $12.00 each 
1-4              $12.00 each** 
 
* A $15.00 per brick handling charge will be applied only to orders consisting of 1-4 engraved bricks (4x8 and 8x8 only). 
** A $7.00 per mini brick handling charge will be applied only to orders consisting of 1-4 engraved bricks (1.5x3 and 3x3 
only). 
 
All prices include, the brick, engraving and shipping within the 48 contiguous United States.  You can combine the count of
4x8 & 8x8 bricks in order to meet the quantity discounts and you can combine the count of 1.5 & 3x3 mini bricks to meet
the quantity discounts but cannot combine the counts of the mini bricks with the larger bricks.  The standard amount of 
characters offered on a 4x8 is 3 lines with 20 characters per line, which includes spacing and punctuation and 6 lines with
20 characters per line on an 8x8, which also includes spacing and punctuation.  The mini bricks can be exact replicas and 
have the same amount of characters. 
 
PROCESSING TIME: 
 
Many of our clients have specific EVENT DATES, we ask that you notify us IMMEDIATELY so that we can set 
up a timeline for you and work with you to meet any event or dedication dates.   Our beginning processing 
time fluctuates throughout the year depending on our schedule at that time. What is most important to 
Brick Markers USA, Inc. (BMI) is that we meet YOUR required timeframe.   
 
If you should have questions or need my assistance, please feel free to contact me at 1-800-634-8948 ext. 227 or e-mail 
jack@brickmarkers.com.  
  
Thank you and have a great day, 
 
 
 

Sincerely, 

Brick Markers® USA laser engraving technology is covered by the following U.S. & Foreign Patents: 6,064,034, 
6,635,846, 7,238,396, GB2349609, CA2474284 and 5,554,335 

 

Jack Benigno 
Sales Manager 

4430 W. Tiffany Drive, West Palm Beach, FL  33407
800-634-8948  x227 ~   Fax: 561-848-7266  

jack@brickmarkers.com     www.brickmarkers.com

 

Important Note: Due to the enormous amount of computer viruses, please be sure to indicate the name of your project on the subject 
line within your e-mail.  We certainly do not want to omit your very important e-mail.  Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.  
 
 



B3 

1 
 

 

 

To: Village President George, Village Council  
Chris Wilson, Village Manager 

From: Mark D. Lloyd, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

Date:  October 13, 2021 (updated) 

Re: Proposed Redevelopment of Vacant Lot at 31655 Southfield – Goddard School of Beverly Hills 

THIS ITEM WAS TABLED FROM THE OCTOBER 5, 2021, VILLAGE COUNCIL MEETING 

Project History: 
 
On July 21, 2021, the Village Council reviewed plans and application materials to develop a childcare facility, The 
Goddard School of Beverly Hills, at 31655 Southfield Road in the B-Business District and within the Village Center 
Overlay District (VCOD). The property is approximately 1.5 acres in size, irregularly shaped and located on the west 
side of Southfield north of 13 Mile. The proposal includes a mixed-use development project consisting of 2 buildings. 
Building 1 (located at the rear of the site) is a two-story, 16,000 square foot childcare/preschool building with 
multiple classrooms and facilities and includes a screened mechanical room on top. Building 2 (at the front of the 
site) is also two-stories consisting of 5,000 square feet of floor area with mixed uses including office and retail. Upon 
review of the proposal, the Village Council requested the Planning Commission review the project and provide a 
recommendation on the proposed development. 
 
The Planning Commission conducted two meetings on the matter: July 28, 2021, and August 25, 2021. Upon 
completion of the review, the Planning Commission recommended Village Council approval of the project subject to 
the applicant receiving variances for the size of the outdoor play area and separation from another facility providing 
similar service. 
 
On September 13, 2021, the Zoning Board of Appeals conducted two public hearings on the above-noted variances as 

follows: (Both Variances Were Granted) 

Case No. 1390 – Relief from Section 22.08.370(b) requiring 150 square feet for each person cared for; Required – 

30,000 square feet; Proposed – 10,240 square feet.  

Case No. 1391 – Relief from Section 22.08.370(c) requiring 1,500-foot separation from another State Licensed 

Facility; Proposed - adjacent Petitioner: 

Project Background: 

The review, approval and recommendation of this project was extensive and comprehensive. Following is a list of 

documents included in the first link below which provides reports and pertinent documentation from the Village 

Council, Planning Commission and ZBA. These documents provide detailed background and review information on 

the proposed project. 

- September 13, 2021, ZBA agenda packet, application and report with attachments, includes 
o PC Report dated August 20, 2021 Cover only – see additional link 



B3 

2 
 

o PC Report dated July 23, 2021, cover only see additional link 
o July 14, 2021 VC report (July 21st meeting) 

▪ Project description, application and plans 
▪ Compliance with intent of VCOD (Hobbs & Black July 14, 2021) 
▪ Traffic Study (Storey Engineering, June 30, 2021) 

- Color Renderings 
 

Project Link (ZBA report and noted attachments): 

https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:cd2babf9-d62c-4210-8517-7b24d0b1e201 

Following is a list of documents included in the second link below which provides additional reports and pertinent 

documentation from the Planning Commission. These documents provide detailed background and review 

information on the proposed project. 

https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:c52c2014-d40c-4d2e-a89a-99c6af567429 

- August 20, 2021 PC report and attachments for the August 25 meeting 
o PC Report dated August 20, 2021, complete with attachments 

▪ August 20, 2021 Review letter from HRC 
▪ August 12 response to planner letter from Hobbs & Black 
▪ August 12, 2021 response to engineering comments Storey Engineering 
▪ August 12, 2021 response to landscape comments, Storey Engineering 
▪ Detailed floor and development plans 
▪ Planner comments 

 
A copy of the proposed Development Agreement has been submitted, and reviewed by the Village Manager, Village 

Attorney, Planning and Zoning Administrator and Contract Planner. Edits have been made and returned to the 

developer for review and comment. All edits have been accepted, agreed upon and incorporated into the 

Development Agreement distributed along with this report.  

A project presentation will be made at the meeting. In addition, the applicant and their team will be available to 

answer any questions and to discuss the project. Please contact staff at your earliest convenience if there are any 

questions or comments which might need additional research prior to the meeting. 

Suggested Resolution:  

The Village Council accepts the Planning Commission’s recommendation and hereby approves the site plan for 

development of a child-care center at 31655 Southfield Road located in the B-Business District and within the Village 

Center Overlay District finding that the project has received required variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals and 

that the project meets the requirements of the B-Business District and the intent of the Village Center Overlay 

District. Furthermore, the Village Council hereby approves the associated Development Agreement and authorizes 

the Village President to execute on behalf of the Village Council. 

https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:cd2babf9-d62c-4210-8517-7b24d0b1e201
https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:c52c2014-d40c-4d2e-a89a-99c6af567429




































EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

 
P:\2021\21705\DOCS\Exhibits for Development Agreement\Legal Description.docx 

 

 
 DATE:  October 14, 2021 

 RE:  Goddard of Beverly Hills Development Agreement 

 

 

 
 
 
Legal Description: 
 
Per Title Agency, Fidelity National Insurance Company, Title Commitment No. A0765944, 
Effective February 4, 2021: 
  

Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Oakland, Village of Beverly Hills. 

 

Lot 6, except the east 200 feet of the south 56.66 feet, and Outlot A, Supervisor’s Plat 

of Gould Court, as recorded in Liber 65 of Plats, Page 11, Oakland County Records. 

 

  

   



THE GODDARD SCHOOL OF BEVERLY HILLS

C-0.0

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TSEXISTING LEGEND SCHEDULE B-SECTION II EXCEPTIONS

THE FOLLOWING OBSERVATIONS WERE MADE AT THE TIME
OF SURVEY:

AN EXISTING WALL ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY APPEARS TO STRADDLE THE PROPERTY LINE.

A WELL CROSSES THE SOUTH LINE OF THE PARCEL.

AN ASPHALT RAMP THAT, BASED ON HISTORICAL IMAGERY,
WAS USED BY THE MCDONALDS THAT USED TO EXIST ON
THE SUBJECT PARCEL APPEARS TO ALLOW ACCESS TO THE
SUBJECT PARCEL FROM THE SOUTHERN ADJOINER.

A SET OF CONCRETE STEPS ALLOWS ACCESS TO THE SITE
FROM THE SOUTHERN ADJOINER.

SURVEYOR'S OBSERVATIONS

AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY, EVIDENCE WAS OBSERVED OF
POTENTIAL ENCROACHMENTS. OTHER ENCROACHMENTS MAY OR
MAY NOT STILL EXIST ON OR OFF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.

MISCELLANEOUS NOTES

1.     THERE IS DIRECT ACCESS TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY VIA SOUTHFIELD ROAD, A PUBLIC
RIGHT-OF-WAY.

2.     THE PROPERTY SURVEYED AND SHOWN HEREON IS THE SAME PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT
A OF TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, 

        TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970, EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020.

3.     REFERENCE SURVEY BY: NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS, JOB NO.: H831, DATED: 12/2/2013.

BENCHMARKS

DATUM: NAVD88

BM A:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 51'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 49'± NORTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF NORTH ACCESS DRIVE TO SUBJECT'S SITE.
ELEV = 727.57

BM B:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 53'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 29'± SOUTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF THE SOUTH ADJOINER'S ACCESS DRIVE.
ELEV = 726.91

BM C:
60D NAIL IN EAST FACE UTILITY POLE, 428'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 100'± NORTH
OF SUBJECT'S SOUTH PROPERTY LINE.
ELEV = 729.78

UTILITY/REFERENCE INFO

WM: SE OAKLAND CO. WATER AUTHORITY
CONTACT: BOB JACKOVICH
PHONE: 248-288-5150
RECEIVED: N/A

WM/SAN/STORM: BEVERLY HILLS VILLAGE
CONTACT: KEVIN LAWRENCE
PHONE: 248-646-6404
RECEIVED: N/A

GAS: CONSUMERS ENERGY
CONTACT: KURT GOLDING
PHONE: 517-374-2002
RECEIVED: 4/8/21

ELEC: DETROIT EDISON
CONTACT: N/A
PHONE: 313-235-5632
RECEIVED: N/A

PHONE/CABLE: AT&T
CONTACT: LINDA DENNISUK
PHONE: 248-456-8256
RECEIVED: 4/7/21

PHONE/CABLE: COMCAST
CONTACT: CRAIG PUDAS
PHONE: 248-809-2715
RECEIVED: N/A

UTILITY NOTES

1. ALL  UTILITIES  SHOWN ARE BASED ON;
a. MISS DIG MARKINGS LOCATED AT TIME OF SURVEY, OR;
b. UTILITY MAPS PROVIDED TO THE SURVEYOR AT THE TIME OF
THE SURVEY.

2. THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY
APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS
PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-1.0

TO
PO

G
R

A
PH

IC
 +

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y 

SU
R

VE
Y

TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020

Joint R/W in favor of The Detroit Edison Company and Michigan Bell
Telephone Company and the Covenants, Conditions and
Restrictions contained in instrument recorded in Liber 4341, page
375.
(PLOTTED AND SHOWN HEREIN)

U.G.L. Permit in favor of The Detroit Edison Company and the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions contained in instrument
recorded in Liber 4440, page 327
(IT IS NOT ON, OR DOES NOT TOUCH, THE SURVEYED PROPERTY)

Easement Agreement in favor of the Village of Beverly Hills and the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions contained in instrument
recorded in Liber 4889, page 192.
(PLOTTED AND SHOWN HEREIN)

Covenants, conditions, restrictions and other provisions but
omitting restrictions, if any, based on race, color, religion, sex,
handicap, familial status or national origin as contained in
instrument recorded in Liber 5200, page 701.
(ZONING RECLASSIFICATION)

Easement Agreement in favor of the Village of Beverly Hills and the
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions contained in instrument
recorded in Liber 6081, page 127.
(PLOTTED AND SHOWN HEREIN)

Easement Agreement in favor of the Board of Road Commissioners
of the County of Oakland and the Covenants, Conditions and
Restrictions contained in instrument recorded in Liber 6118, page
721.
(PLOTTED AND SHOWN HEREIN)

Easement for Sidewalk in favor of the Village of Beverly Hills and
the Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions contained in instrument
recorded in Liber 11156, page 769.
(THE LOCATION CANNOT BE DETERMINED FROM THE RECORD
DOCUMENT)

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

11
.

9.

7.

8.

12.

9.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

             FLOOD ZONE
FEMA MAP SCALES DO NOT SUPPLY SUFFICIENT LEVEL OF
DETAIL TO PLOT ACCURATELY. ZONES IF PLOTTED HEREIN
ARE APPROXIMATE.

BY SCALED MAP LOCATION AND GRAPHIC PLOTTING 
ONLY, THE SUBJECT PROPERTY APPEARS TO LIE ENTIRELY
IN ZONE (X) AREA DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE OF THE 
0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD PLAIN ACCORDING TO THE
FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR THE COUNTY OF 
OAKLAND, COMMUNITY PANEL NO. (26125C0538F), 
EFFECTIVE DATE SEPTEMBER 29, 2006.

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TSEXISTING LEGEND

THE FOLLOWING OBSERVATIONS WERE MADE AT THE TIME
OF SURVEY:

AN EXISTING WALL ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY APPEARS TO STRADDLE THE PROPERTY LINE.

A WELL CROSSES THE SOUTH LINE OF THE PARCEL.

AN ASPHALT RAMP THAT, BASED ON HISTORICAL IMAGERY,
WAS USED BY THE MCDONALDS THAT USED TO EXIST ON
THE SUBJECT PARCEL APPEARS TO ALLOW ACCESS TO THE
SUBJECT PARCEL FROM THE SOUTHERN ADJOINER.

A SET OF CONCRETE STEPS ALLOWS ACCESS TO THE SITE
FROM THE SOUTHERN ADJOINER.

SURVEYOR'S OBSERVATIONS

AT THE TIME OF THIS SURVEY, EVIDENCE WAS OBSERVED OF
POTENTIAL ENCROACHMENTS. OTHER ENCROACHMENTS MAY OR
MAY NOT STILL EXIST ON OR OFF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.

MISCELLANEOUS NOTES

1.     THERE IS DIRECT ACCESS TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY VIA SOUTHFIELD ROAD, A PUBLIC
RIGHT-OF-WAY.

2.     THE PROPERTY SURVEYED AND SHOWN HEREON IS THE SAME PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT
A OF TITLE AGENCY: FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,

        TITLE COMMITMENT NO: A0765944, EFFECTIVE DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2021.

3.     REFERENCE SURVEY BY: NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS, JOB NO.: H831, DATED: 12/2/2013.

BENCHMARKS

DATUM: NAVD88

BM A:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 51'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 49'± NORTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF NORTH ACCESS DRIVE TO SUBJECT'S SITE.
ELEV = 727.57

BM B:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 53'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 29'± SOUTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF THE SOUTH ADJOINER'S ACCESS DRIVE.
ELEV = 726.91

BM C:
60D NAIL IN EAST FACE UTILITY POLE, 428'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 100'± NORTH
OF SUBJECT'S SOUTH PROPERTY LINE.
ELEV = 729.78

UTILITY/REFERENCE INFO

WM: SE OAKLAND CO. WATER AUTHORITY
CONTACT: BOB JACKOVICH
PHONE: 248-288-5150
RECEIVED: N/A

WM/SAN/STORM: BEVERLY HILLS VILLAGE
CONTACT: KEVIN LAWRENCE
PHONE: 248-646-6404
RECEIVED: N/A

GAS: CONSUMERS ENERGY
CONTACT: KURT GOLDING
PHONE: 517-374-2002
RECEIVED: 4/8/21

ELEC: DETROIT EDISON
CONTACT: N/A
PHONE: 313-235-5632
RECEIVED: N/A

PHONE/CABLE: AT&T
CONTACT: LINDA DENNISUK
PHONE: 248-456-8256
RECEIVED: 4/7/21

PHONE/CABLE: COMCAST
CONTACT: CRAIG PUDAS
PHONE: 248-809-2715
RECEIVED: N/A

UTILITY NOTES

1. ALL  UTILITIES  SHOWN ARE BASED ON;
a. MISS DIG MARKINGS LOCATED AT TIME OF SURVEY, OR;
b. UTILITY MAPS PROVIDED TO THE SURVEYOR AT THE TIME OF
THE SURVEY.

2. THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE ONLY
APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS
PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

11.

13
.

17
.

12.

15
.

16
.

13.

18.

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-2.0

SI
TE

 D
EM

O
LI

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-3.0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

IT
E 

PL
A

N

LEGEND
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-3.1

PU
B

LI
C

 O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E 
PL

A
N

LEGEND
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-4.0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 G

R
A

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

LEGEND
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: 899970,
EFFECTIVE DATE: AUGUST 11, 2020)

EXHIBIT C DESCRIPTION:

LAND IN THE VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS, OAKLAND COUNTY, MI, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

LOT(s) 6, EXCEPT THEREFROM THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET AND
ALL OF OUT LOT A OF SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE 11 OF OAKLAND COUNTY
RECORDS.



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-5.0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

LEGEND



SCALE: 1" = 30'

C-6.1

N
O

TE
S 

+ 
D

ET
A

IL
S-

1

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS



SCALE: 1" = 30'

C-6.2

D
ET

A
IL

S 
- 2

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS



SCALE: 1" = 30'

C-6.3

D
ET

A
IL

S 
- 3

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS



SCALE: 1" = 30'

C-6.4

D
ET

A
IL

S 
- 4

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS



D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

 S
YS

TE
M

 D
ET

A
IL

S

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

SCALE: (REFER TO DETAIL)

C-6.5



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS PROVIDED)

(PER TITLE AGENCY: FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO: A0765944,
EFFECTIVE DATE: FEBRUARY 4, 2021)

EXHIBIT A DESCRIPTION:

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF OAKLAND,
VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS.

LOT 6, EXCEPT THE EAST 200 FEET OF THE SOUTH 56.66 FEET, AND
OUTLOT A, SUPERVISOR'S PLAT OF GOULD COURT, AS RECORDED IN
LIBER 65 OF PLATS, PAGE(S) 11, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS.

BEARING REFERENCE

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON PROJECT COORDINATE SYSTEM:
MICHIGAN STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, NAD83 (CONUS)
(MOL) (GRS80), SOUTH ZONE 2113, INTERNATIONAL FEET, GROUND
(LAT: 42°31'19.52" N, LON: 83°13'28.62" W, ELEV: 728,
SCALE FACTOR: 1.00010792).

N

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-7.0

SE
SC

 P
LA

N

LEGEND

BENCHMARKS

DATUM: NAVD88

BM A:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 51'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 49'± NORTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF NORTH ACCESS DRIVE TO SUBJECT'S SITE.
ELEV = 727.57

BM B:
ARROW ON HYDRANT, 53'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 29'± SOUTH FROM
CENTERLINE OF THE SOUTH ADJOINER'S ACCESS DRIVE.
ELEV = 726.91

BM C:
60D NAIL IN EAST FACE UTILITY POLE, 428'± WEST OF CENTERLINE SOUTHFIELD ROAD & 100'± NORTH
OF SUBJECT'S SOUTH PROPERTY LINE.
ELEV = 729.78



SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
O

A
D

(6
6 

FT
. W

D.
 - 

PU
BL

IC
 - 

R/
W

)

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

N

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

N

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C-8.0

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

PL
A

N

LEGEND

GRAPHIC SCALE



ST
AT

E
OF MICH IGA

N

ARC
H

I
T

E
T

C

R
E

G
IS

E

E
T

R

L ANDS
EAC P

R

Farmington Hills, MI 48336
24333 Orchard Lake Rd, Suite G

registered Landscape  Architect
Community Land Planner  and

and ASSOCIATES

A

ph. (248) 557-5588
fax. (248) 557-5416

FP
FELINO A. PASCUAL

FP

Do Not scale drawings. Use
figured dimensions only

Copyright

This document and the subject matter
contained therein is proprietary and is
not to be used or reproduced without
the written permission of Felino Pascual
and Associates

sheet no:

project no:

notice:

date:

checked by:

drawn by:

job no./issue/revision date:

sheet title:

project location:

project:

client:

seal:

2021

LS21.076.06  REVIEW  6-11-2021

The location and elevations of existing
underground utilities as shown on this
drawing are only approximate. no guarantee
is either expressed or implied as to the
completeness of accuracy. contractor shall be
exclusively responsible for determining the
exact location and elevation prior to the start
of construction

JP, DK

LS21.076.06

6-08-2021

 of 3

935 E. Silverbell Road
Lake Orion Michigan
48360

Village of Beverly
Hills, Michigan

THE
GODDARD
SCHOOL
Beverly Hills

THE GODDARD
SCHOOL OF LAKE
ORION

31655 Southfield Rd.

SPA      6-30-2021

LS21.076.06    SPA      8-12-2021

40'
scale:

20'0' 80' 120'

Village of Beverly Hills, Michigan
The Goddard School

proposed

Goddard

Southfield R
oad

unless noted otherwise, numerical value on landscape
quantities specified on plan take precedence over
graphic representation.

note:

landscape legend

(Eastern Redbud, Crabs, Hawthorn,
Serviceberry, etc...)

perennials and/or seasonal flowers

(White Pine, Austrian Pine, Spruces )
evergreen trees

ornamental trees

deciduous trees

evergreen shrubs
(junipers, yews, hollies, arborvitae,
boxwood,etc.)

(Maples, Celtis occidentalis,
Zelkova serrata, Oaks, Lindens,
Nyssa sylvatica, etc...)

deciduous shrubs
(viburnum, forsythia,burning
bush,cotoneaster dogwood,etc.)

(Daylily, Sedum, Ornamental Grasses,
Black Eyed Susan, etc...)

LANDSCAPE
PLANTING DETAIL

LS-3

parking

street trees
landscape requirement summary

Retail

Gould Court

,,,,

School

general landscape notes:

landscape plan for:



ST
AT

E
OF MICH IGA

N

ARC
H

I
T

E
T

C

R
E

G
IS

E

E
T

R

L ANDS
EAC P

R

Farmington Hills, MI 48336
24333 Orchard Lake Rd, Suite G

registered Landscape  Architect
Community Land Planner  and

and ASSOCIATES

A

ph. (248) 557-5588
fax. (248) 557-5416

FP
FELINO A. PASCUAL

FP

Do Not scale drawings. Use
figured dimensions only

Copyright

This document and the subject matter
contained therein is proprietary and is
not to be used or reproduced without
the written permission of Felino Pascual
and Associates

sheet no:

project no:

notice:

date:

checked by:

drawn by:

job no./issue/revision date:

sheet title:

project location:

project:

client:

seal:

2021

LS21.076.06  REVIEW  6-11-2021

The location and elevations of existing
underground utilities as shown on this
drawing are only approximate. no guarantee
is either expressed or implied as to the
completeness of accuracy. contractor shall be
exclusively responsible for determining the
exact location and elevation prior to the start
of construction

JP, DK

LS21.076.06

6-08-2021

 of 3

935 E. Silverbell Road
Lake Orion Michigan
48360

Village of Beverly
Hills, Michigan

THE
GODDARD
SCHOOL
Beverly Hills

THE GODDARD
SCHOOL OF LAKE
ORION

31655 Southfield Rd.

SPA      6-30-2021

LS21.076.06    SPA      8-12-2021

plant material list
and planting
details

LS-2

keykey commentssizecommon namebotanical name

plant material list
comments

SCARIFY PLANTING PIT SIDES.
RECOMPACT BASE OF TO 4"
DEPTH.

NOTE:
1.EVERGREEN TREE  SHALL BEAR
SAME RELATION TO FINISH GRADE
AS IT BORE ORIGINALLY OR SLIGHTLY
HIGHER THAN FINISH GRADE UP TO 6"
ABOVE GRADE, IF DIRECTED BY
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR HEAVY
CLAY SOIL AREAS.

2. DO NOT PRUNE TERMINAL LEADER.
PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR BROKEN
BRANCHES.

3. REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTICS ETC.

REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE
MATERIALS COMPLETELY FROM
THE ROOTBALL. CUT AND REMOVE
WIRE BASKET AND BURLAP FROM
TOP HALF OF THE ROOTBALL.

MOUND EARTH TO FORM
SAUCER

MULCH 3" DEPTH WITH
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK.
NATURAL IN COLOR. LEAVE 3"
CIRCLE OF BARE SOIL AT BASE
OF TREE TRUNK TO  EXPOSE
ROOT FLARE.

2" X 2" HARDWOOD STAKES,
MIN. 36" ABOVE GROUND FOR
UPRIGHT, 18" IF ANGLED.
DRIVE STAKES A MIN. 18"
INTO UNDISTURBED GROUND
OUTSIDE ROOTBALL.
REMOVE AFTER ONE YEAR.

STAKE TREES AT FIRST BRANCH
USING 2"-3" WIDE BELT- LIKE
NYLON OR PLASTIC STRAPS.
ALLOW FOR SOME MINIMAL
FLEXING OF THE TREE. REMOVE
AFTER ONE YEAR.

PLANTING MIXTURE:
AMEND SOILS PER SITE
CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS
OF THE PLANT MATERIAL.

PLANT TREE SO ROOT FLARE IS AT
OR ABOVE SURROUNDING GRADE.
REMOVE ROOT BALL DIRT TO
EXPOSE FLARE IF NECESSARY AND
CUT ANY GIRDLING ROOTS.

4. GUY EVERGREEN TREES ABOVE 12'
HEIGHT. STAKE EVERGEEN TREE
BELOW 12' HEIGHT.

evergreen planting detail
no scale

MOUND EARTH TO
FORM SAUCER

PLANTING MIXTURE:
AMEND SOILS PER SITE
CONDITIONS AND
REQUIREMENTS OF THE PLANT
MATERIAL.

MULCH 2" DEPTH WITH SHREDDED
HARDWOOD BARK. NATURAL IN
COLOR. LEAVE 3" CIRCLE OF BARE
SOIL AT BASE OF TREE TRUNK TO
EXPOSE ROOT FLARE.

NOTE:
1. SHRUB SHALL BEAR SAME RELATION TO FINISH
GRADE AS IT BORE ORIGINALLY OR SLIGHTLY
HIGHER THAN FINISH GRADE UP TO 4" ABOVE
GRADE, IF DIRECTED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
 FOR HEAVY CLAY SOIL AREAS.
2. PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR BROKEN BRANCHES.
3. REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTICS AND OTHER MATERIALS

shrub planting detail
no scale

SHRUBS PLANTED IN BEDS
SHALL HAVE ENTIRE BED MASS
EXCAVATED AND BACKFILLED
WITH APPROVED PLANT MIX.
PLANTS SHALL NOT BE
INSTALLED IN INDIVIDUAL HOLES.

SCARIFY PLANTING PITSIDES.
RECOMPACT BASE OF TO 4" DEPTH.

REMOVE COLLAR OF ALL FIBER
POTS. POTS SHALL BE CUT TO
PROVIDE FOR ROOT GROWTH.
REMOVE ALL NONORGANIC
CONTAINERS COMPLETELY.

REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE
MATERIALS COMPLETELY FROM THE
ROOTBALL. CUT AND REMOVE WIRE
BASKET AND BURLAP FROM TOP
HALF OF THE ROOTBALL.

4. GUY TREES ABOVE 3" CAL.. STAKE
DECIDUOUS TREES BELOW 3" CAL.

SCARIFY PLANTING PIT
SIDES. RECOMPACT
BASE OF TO 4" DEPTH.

NOTE:
1. TREES SHALL BEAR SAME
RELATION TO FINISH GRADE AS IT
BORE ORIGINALLY OR SLIGHTLY
HIGHER THAN FINISH GRADE UP TO
6"  ABOVE GRADE, IF DIRECTED BY
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR
HEAVY CLAY SOIL AREAS.

2. DO NOT PRUNE TERMINAL
LEADER. PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR
BROKEN BRANCHES.

3. REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTICS ETC.

REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE
MATERIALS COMPLETELY FROM THE
ROOTBALL. CUT AND REMOVE WIRE
BASKET AND BURLAP FROM TOP HALF
OF THE ROOTBALL.

MOUND EARTH TO FORM
SAUCER

MULCH 3" DEPTH WITH
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK.
NATURAL IN COLOR. LEAVE 3"
CIRCLE OF BARE SOIL AT BASE OF
TREE TRUNK TO EXPOSE ROOT
FLARE.

2" X 2" HARDWOOD STAKES, MIN.
36" ABOVE GROUND FOR
UPRIGHT, 18" IF ANGLED. DRIVE
STAKES A MIN. 18" INTO
UNDISTURBED GROUND OUTSIDE
ROOTBALL. REMOVE AFTER ONE
YEAR.

STAKE TREES AT FIRST BRANCH
USING 2"-3" WIDE BELT-LIKE
NYLON OR PLASTIC STRAPS.
ALLOW FOR SOME MINIMAL
FLEXING OF THE TREE. REMOVE
AFTER ONE YEAR.

PLANTING MIXTURE:
AMEND SOILS PER SITE
CONDITIONS AND
REQUIREMENTS OF THE
PLANT MATERIAL.

PLANT TREE SO ROOT FLARE
IS AT OR ABOVE
SURROUNDING GRADE.
REMOVE ROOT BALL  DIRT
TO EXPOSE FLARE IF
NECESSARY AND CUT ANY
GIRDLING ROOTS.

tree planting detail
no scale

perennial planting detail
no scale

PLANTING MIXTURE
12" DEPTH

SUBGRADE

MIN. 1 1/2 " - 2"  DEPTH DOUBLE
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK.
MULCH SHALL BE NEUTRAL IN
COLOR

quant.
1A

no scale

tree staking detail

Orient staking/guying to
prevailing winds, except on
slopes greater than 3:1 orient to
slope.

Use same staking/guying
orientation for all plants within
each grouping or area.

2"-3' WIDE BELT-LIKE
NYLON OR PLASTIC
STRAPS
STAKE TREES - JUST BELOW
FIRST BRANCH USING 2 - 3"
WIDE BELT-LIKE NYLON.
CONNECT FROM TREE TO
STAKE OPPOSITE. ALLOW FOR
SOME FLEXING OF THE TREE.
REMOVE AFTER ONE (1) YEAR.

USE 3 HARDWOOD STAKES PER
TREE. 2" X 2" X 8' STAKES. DRIVE
STAKES INTO UNDISTURBED SOIL
6"-8" OUTSIDE OF ROOTBALL TO A
DEPTH OF 18" BELOW TREE PIT.
REMOVE AFTER ONE (1) YEAR.
DO NOT USE WIRE OR ROPE THRU
A HOSE.

landscape maintenance notes:Planting landscape notes:



ST
AT

E
OF MICH IGA

N

ARC
H

I
T

E
T

C

R
E

G
IS

E

E
T

R

L ANDS
EAC P

R

Farmington Hills, MI 48336
24333 Orchard Lake Rd, Suite G

registered Landscape  Architect
Community Land Planner  and

and ASSOCIATES

A

ph. (248) 557-5588
fax. (248) 557-5416

FP
FELINO A. PASCUAL

FP

Do Not scale drawings. Use
figured dimensions only

Copyright

This document and the subject matter
contained therein is proprietary and is
not to be used or reproduced without
the written permission of Felino Pascual
and Associates

sheet no:

project no:

notice:

date:

checked by:

drawn by:

job no./issue/revision date:

sheet title:

project location:

project:

client:

seal:

2021

LS21.076.06  REVIEW  6-11-2021

The location and elevations of existing
underground utilities as shown on this
drawing are only approximate. no guarantee
is either expressed or implied as to the
completeness of accuracy. contractor shall be
exclusively responsible for determining the
exact location and elevation prior to the start
of construction

JP, DK

LS21.076.06

6-08-2021

 of 3

935 E. Silverbell Road
Lake Orion Michigan
48360

Village of Beverly
Hills, Michigan

THE
GODDARD
SCHOOL
Beverly Hills

THE GODDARD
SCHOOL OF LAKE
ORION

31655 Southfield Rd.

SPA      6-30-2021

LS21.076.06    SPA      8-12-2021

So
ut

hf
ie

ld
 R

oa
d

AMENITY PLAN

LS-3

Gould Court

bicycle rackE F decorative bench
seatingG Itrash receptacle

decorative pedestrian
concrete  walkA

6" high concrete planterC

concrete planterB proposedGoddard
RetailSchool

decorative bollard light
J

cafe bistro chairs and tablesD

decorative upright
concrete planterH

specialty pavement
concrete saw scored 45 degrees

DECORATIVE POLE &
LIGHT FIXTURE

BOLLARD LIGHT FIXTURE

TRASH RECEPTICAL

BIKE RACK

BENCH SEAT
CAFE SEATING
AND TABLE

bench seat location

bike rack  location

6" high raised concrete
landscape planter

trash receptacle
location

E

site lighting location

cafe bistro chairs &
tables location

C

D

D

A

I

I specialty pavement concrete
saw scored 45 degrees

decorative bollard
light location

decorative bollard
light locationJ

G

F

cafe bistro chairs &
tables location

bike rack  locationE

J

bike rack  locationE

decorative pedestrian
concrete walk

A

pedestrian site
collector walk

proposed

decorative concrete
planter locationB

trash receptacle
locationF

site amenity reference location plan

CONCRETE PLANTER

36"X 36" CONCRETE PLANTER

36"x36" concrete
planterH

specialty pavement concrete
saw scored 45 degrees

(see photometric plan for details)

decorative pedestrian
concrete walk

G bench seat location



Mounting Height Note
MOUNTING HEIGHT IS MEASURED FROM
GRADE TO FACE OF FIXTURE. POLE HEIGHT
SHOULD BE CALCULATED AS THE MOUNTING
HEIGHT LESS BASE HEIGHT.

Drawing Note
THIS DRAWING WAS GENERATED FROM AN
ELECTRONIC IMAGE FOR ESTIMATION PURPOSE
ONLY. LAYOUT TO BE VERIFIED IN FIELD BY
OTHERS.

G
O

D
D

A
R
D

 S
C
H

O
O

L 
- 

B
EV

ER
LY

 H
IL

LS
PH

O
TO

M
ET

R
IC

 S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

PR
EP

A
R
ED

 F
O

R
: 

S
TO

R
EY

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
P,

 L
LC

.
G

A
SS

ER
 B

U
S
H

 A
SS

O
C
IA

TE
S

 
W

W
W

.G
A
SS

ER
B
U

S
H

.C
O

M

Designer
JD/KB/nae
Date
6/16/2021
Scale
Not to Scale
Drawing No.
#21-63485-V3

1 of 1

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min Avg/Max

PROPERTY LINE 0.2 fc 2.0 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1
PARKING LOT 1.6 fc 5.3 fc 0.3 fc 17.7:1 5.3:1 0.3:1

General Note
1.  SEE SCHEDULE FOR LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT.
2.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 0' -
0"

THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE
APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT
TO EXISTING / FUTURE FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS
LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS
CALCULATED FROM LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER
CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
ILLUMINATING ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED
METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY
MANUFACTURER'S
LUMINAIRE MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL
VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER
VARIABLE FIELD CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS
INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE
FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING
ANALYSIS OF LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.
THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT
IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE
AND
LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE.

UNLESS EXEMPT, PROJECT MUST COMPLY WITH LIGHTING
CONTROLS REQUIRMENTS DEFINED IN ASHRAE 90.1 2013.
FOR SPECIFIC INFORMATION CONTACT GBA CONTROLS
GROUP AT ASG@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-6705.

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.2

20.3

0.3

8.2

1.4

4.6

5.8

6.3

0.2

20.5

1.1

12.2

3.1

3.8

0.1

0.7

0.4

0.4

14.6

4.3

0.2

2.6

0.4

0.3

4.8

4.4

0.2

3.5

2.4

0.3

4.3

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.6

17.1

2.8

0.3

1.2

0.2

0.1

0.5

1.5

3.2

9.4

10.6

9.3

10.0

10.0

2.4

18.2

0.3

0.1

0.3

1.0

0.2

0.2

0.5

1.2

1.0

1.7

2.1

2.2

2.2

1.9

1.1

4.2

4.1

3.7

1.0

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.3

0.5

1.0

0.3

0.1

0.4

0.8

1.6

0.2

0.1

0.4

1.0

1.6

2.1

2.8

2.5

2.5

1.8

1.1

5.4

7.8

4.9

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.4

2.0

1.5

2.1

3.0

1.9

2.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.6

0.8

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

2.8

5.5

7.6

4.3

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

1.3

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

2.0

0.7

0.2

0.1

0.2

2.3

1.1

2.3

5.2

3.7

2.0

1.6

0.3

0.1

1.7

6.5

8.6

2.0

0.3

0.1

0.9

5.2

1.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

1.6

6.1

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.2

5.6

14.1

21.3

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.4

2.0

3.5

3.0

3.0

3.7

2.5

2.8

3.7

2.4

1.3

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.6

2.9

6.0

4.6

3.7

6.2

4.4

3.8

6.1

3.7

1.0

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

2.0

4.9

3.9

2.9

4.7

3.2

2.5

3.9

2.2

0.7

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.7

1.4

1.2

1.1

1.3

1.0

0.9

1.0

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.5

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.6

0.9

1.4

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.3

1.3

1.6

1.8

1.8

1.7

1.3

0.9

1.5

1.9

2.6

2.7

2.5

2.1

1.8

1.9

2.4

3.3

3.5

3.2

2.1

1.3

0.7

2.4

2.9

3.4

4.2

3.5

2.1

1.7

1.9

2.5

3.7

4.9

3.4

2.2

1.2

0.6

1.0

1.6

2.8

2.6

1.4

0.7

1.3

0.6

0.8

1.5

2.3

3.3

3.9

3.2

2.2

1.3

0.6

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.2

2.1

2.9

2.9

2.8

1.9

1.1

0.7

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.1

0.8

0.5

0.5

0.7

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.9

0.7

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.9

0.7

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.1

0.8

0.5

0.5

0.8

1.3

2.1

2.9

2.8

2.7

1.8

1.1

0.6

0.4

0.8

1.6

2.3

3.4

3.8

3.0

2.1

1.3

0.6

0.4

0.8

1.6

2.4

1.3

0.7

0.4

0.8

1.5

2.4

4.0

3.4

2.2

1.3

0.8

0.8

1.4

2.4

3.4

3.5

3.2

2.3

1.7

1.1

0.7

1.0

1.5

1.9

1.9

2.0

1.9

1.7

1.4

0.7

1.2

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.1

1.8

2.1

3.4

3.9

2.3

2.8

2.2

2.8

1.8

1.8

1.2

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.3

21.9

5.3

0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.1

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.4 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.3 0.3 0.4 1.0 1.6 1.1 0.7

1.7

1.9

1.5

1.9

1.4

1.9

1.5

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.10.10.20.30.20.20.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.10.1

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0
0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.0

Plan View
Scale - 1" = 20ft

Ordering Note
FOR INQUIRIES CONTACT GASSER BUSH AT
QUOTES@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Schedule

Symbol Label Quantity Manufacturer Catalog Number Descriptio
n

Lumens
Per Lamp Wattage MH

A
3 Lithonia Lighting KAD LED 20C 700 40K

R4 MVOLT HS
KAD LED 4417 45 14-0"

A2
2 Lithonia Lighting KAD LED 30C 700 40K

R4 MVOLT
KAD LED 8369 138 14'-0"

B
10 Holophane CHBOLED P30 40K xxxxx

NIO5 AWS
CHBOLED 1037 24 3'-6"

DL
6 BEGA Converted by

LUMCat V 14.02.2017 /
H.R.

22 392 22392K4 2909 22.9 9'-0"

PB

3 Holophane GSLF3 P10 40K XXXXX
SYM

GlasWerks
Luminescen
t LED
Hallbrook,
P10
Performanc
e Package,
4000K CCT,
Symmetric
distribution

4256 30 9'-0"

RDL
32 Focal Point FLC4D-RO-1000L-120-

LD1-T/LC4-RO-1000L-
35K-DN-FL1-CD-NP

FLC4D-RO 1103 11.37 10'-0"



20
'-0

"

24'-0"

40'-0"

20
'-0

"

6'
-0

"
C

AN
O

PY
 W

ID
TH

CANOPY LENGTH

30'-0"

24
'-0

"

25
'-6

"

36'-0"

C
AN

O
PY

 W
ID

TH

CANOPY LENGTH

6'
-0

"

#4 x 24" REBAR
GRADE
BRICK EDGE
6" x 6" TREATED TIMBER

1 5/8" IMPACT COURSE (BLACK)
3/8" TOPCOAT COURSE (COLOR)

5" COMPACTED GRAVEL FILL,

COMPACTED SUBGRADE
(BY DEVELOPER/BUILDER)
97% COMPACTION

3/4" CLEAN CHIPPED STONE
INSTALLED BY PLAYGROUND
INSTALLER

EXCAVATION BY DEVELOPER

SCALE:

PRESCHOOL PLAY STRUCTURE10
1/8" = 1'-0"

SCALE:

INFANT/ TODDLER PLAY STRUCTURE09
1/8" = 1'-0"

SCALE:

PRESCHOOL PLAYGROUND RENDERING12
N.T.S.

SCALE:

TODDLER PLAYGROUND RENDERING11
N.T.S.

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

REFER TO 10/C1.2

REFER TO 09/C1.2

1. PLAYGROUND STRUCTURE AND SHADE STRUCTURE APPROVALS OR PERMITS IF
REQUIRED. APPROVALS AND PERMITTING MAY BE REQUIRED FOR COLOR SCHEME,
HEIGHT, MANUFACTURER DESIGN METHODS, ETC.

2. UTILITIES CANNOT BE LOCATED UNDER OR OVER PLAYGROUND BOXES.

3. ELECTRIC AND WATER ARE NEEDED ON SITE, FOR THE PLAYGROUND INSTALLERS USE.  IF
NOT, OTHER PRIOR ARRANGEMENTS SHALL BE MADE.

4. SOILS WITHIN THE PLAYGROUND BOX DIMENSIONS SHOULD BE SUITABLE FOR SLAB AT
GRADE INSTALLATIONS. SOILS SHOULD NOT CONTAIN DEBRIS AND COMPACTED TO 97% IN
ACCEPTED INCREMENTS CONTAINING SUITABLE SOIL.

5. PROVIDE GODDARD SYSTEM INC.'S PROJECT MANAGER WITH A TIMELINE FOR
PLAYGROUND INSTALLATION.  ROUGH GRADE IS REQUIRED AND SIDEWALKS SHALL BE
INSTALLED PRIOR TO PLAYGROUND INSTALLATION, SOD, FENCE AND PARKING LOT TOP
COAT.

6. LOCATE PLAYGROUND BOXES PER SITE PLAN, EXCAVATED 7" DEEP.  PLAYGROUND BOXES
CANNOT EXCEED A MAXIMUM 2% GRADE. (DTL. 2/C3.1)

7. SUB-GRADE BACKFILL MUST BE COMPACTED TO AT LEAST 97% AND SHOULD NOT
CONTAIN MATERIALS SUCH AS LARGE ROCKS, SCRAP WOOD, CONCRETE SPOILS, ETC.
PLAYGROUND INSTALLERS NEED TO DRILL ACCURATE HOLES FOR PLAYGROUND POLE
INSTALLATION.

8. INSTALL DRAINAGE SYSTEM TO EXCAVATED PLAYGROUND BOXES PER SITE PLAN. (DTL.
13/C3.1)

9. ENSURE ADEQUATE AREA FOR PLAYGROUND INSTALLERS.  STAGING AREA NEEDED TO
UNLOAD AND PRE-ASSEMBLE APPROX. 1,000 CUBIC FOOT SHIPMENT OF PLAYGROUND
EQUIPMENT.  HOLDING AREA NEEDED TO RECEIVE DELIVERY OF APPROXIMATELY 40-50
TONS OF CRUSHED STONE. PARKING AREA NEEDED FOR TWO TRUCKS AND ONE 30'
TRAILER OF EXCAVATING EQUIPMENT.

10. IN ORDER TO AVOID POSSIBLE DAMAGE, PARKING LOTS SHOULD NOT HAVE TOPCOAT
APPLIED AND FENCING SHOULD NOT BE INSTALLED UNTIL PLAYGROUND IS COMPLETE.  IF
FENCING IS INSTALLED, LEAVE OUT NECESSARY SECTIONS TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO
PLAYGROUND AREA.

11. ONCE COMPACTED CRUSH STONE BASE, BORDER, AND EQUIPMENT ARE IN PLACE, THEY
SHOULD NOT BE DRIVEN OR WALKED ON AND SHOULD NOT BE USED FOR STORAGE AREA.

12. PLAYGROUND INSTALLATION DESCRIBED ABOVE SHOULD TAKE APPROXIMATELY ONE TO
FIVE DAYS, DEPENDING ON SITE CONDITIONS, WEATHER, INSTALLER CREW SIZE, ETC.

13. INSTALLATION OF POUR-IN-PLACE SURFACING USUALLY TAKES PLACE ONE TO TWO
WEEKS AFTER PLAYGROUND IS INSTALLED, DEPENDING MAINLY ON WEATHER
CONDITIONS.

14. GENERALLY ONLY THREE OR FOUR PARKING SPACES ARE NEEDED FOR SURFACING
INSTALLERS.  (ONE OR TWO VEHICLES AND A MIXER STAGING AREA)

15. TYPICALLY, TWO MEN MIX THE SURFACING PRODUCT IN THE PARKING LOT AND
TRANSPORT BY WHEELBARROW TO PLAYGROUNDS WHERE IT IS POURED AND
TROWELED.  THEREFORE, NO SPECIAL ALLOWANCES ARE NECESSARY (FENCING CAN BE
INSTALLED AND FINISH LANDSCAPING CAN BE COMPLETED)

16. THIS IS USUALLY A TWO-DAY INSTALLATION, DEPENDING MAINLY ON WEATHER
CONDITIONS.  IMPACT COURSE APPLIED ON DAY ONE, AND TOPCOAT (COLOR) APPLIED ON
DAY TWO.

17. ONCE THE TOPCOAT APPLICATION IS COMPLETE, THE BINDING AGENTS WILL TAKE A
MINIMUM 24 HOURS TO CURE.  DURING THAT TIME THERE IS TO BE ABSOLUTELY NO
WALKING ON, PLACING OBJECTS ON, OR ALLOWING ANY DUST TO ACCUMULATE ON THE
TOPCOAT SURFACE.

18. FINISH GRADING AND LANDSCAPING MUST BE THE SAME ELEVATION AT THE PLAYGROUND
BORDERS.

19. ENSURE THAT THE SITE IS SECURE AND THAT OTHER CONTRACTORS WILL NOT BE
STORING, WORKING, WALKING, ETC. ON FINISHED PLAYGROUNDS, SURFACES OR
BORDERS.

GENERAL NOTES:
DEVELOPER/GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHOULD BE IN CONSTANT COMMUNICATION WITH GSI TO
SCHEDULE DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION OF THE PLAYGROUND STRUCTURES. PLAYGROUND
INSTALLERS TRAVEL LONG DISTANCES AND IT IS IMPERATIVE THE SITE IS PROPERLY
PREPARED AS SPECIFIED TO AVOID COSTLY MOBILIZATION, SHIPPING AND STORAGE FEES.

GSI'S PLAYGROUND INSTALLERS TRAVEL GREAT DISTANCES, INCURRING EXPENSES FOR
BOTH TRANSPORTATION AND LODGING.  IN ADDITION THEY ARE REQUIRED TO RESERVE
RENTAL MACHINERY.  IF THEY ARE TURNED AWAY BECAUSE THE SITE IS NOT READY, A
TRAVEL CHARGE WILL APPLY. THIS CHARGE COULD BE SIGNIFICANT ($50.00 PER MAN-HOUR
FOR A CREW OF FIVE, LODGING AT $175 PER ROOM PER NIGHT, AND EQUIPMENT RENTAL
DEPOSITS).  THEREFORE, FOLLOWING ALL OF THE ABOVE GUIDELINES, ESPECIALLY WITH
RESPECT TO DISCLOSING EXCESSIVELY ROCKY CONDITIONS, PROHIBITING THE USE OF
LARGE ROCKS, CEMENT, ETC. IN BACKFILL MATERIALS, AND PROVIDING THE PROJECT
MANAGER AN ACCURATE TIMELINE, WILL SAVE BOTH MONEY AND TIME.

DEVELOPER / GENERAL CONTRACTOR'S
PLAYGROUND RESPONSIBILITIES

SCALE:

POUR-IN-PLACE PLAY SURFACING04
1 1/2" = 1'-0"

SCALE: N/A

GSI-1.0

PL
A

YG
R

O
U

N
D

 D
ET

A
IL

S 
- 1



1 5/8" IMPACT COURSE (BLACK)

3/8" TOPCOAT COURSE (COLOR)
BY PLAYGROUND INSTALLER

5" COMPACTED GRAVEL FILL,
3/4" CLEAN CHIPPED STONE
INSTALLED BY PLAYGROUND
INSTALLER

COMPACTED SUBGRADE
(BY DEVELOPER/BUILDER)
97% COMPACTION

6" DRAINAGE

#4 x 24" REBAR
GRADE
BRICK EDGE
6" x 6" TREATED TIMBER

EXCAVATION BY DEVELOPER

24"

FINISHED STUB-OUT

G.C. TO LEAVE DRAIN PIPE 12"
ABV. GRADE FOR PLAYGROUND
INSTALLER TO TIE INTO

℄
4'-0"

2'
-0

"

2'-0"

PLAYGROUND DRAIN CAP BY
PLAY EQUIPMENT INSTALLER

PROVIDE A 6" DRAIN STUB IN
PLAYGROUND BEDDING FOR
CONNECTION BY PLAYGROUND
EQUIPMENT INSTALLER 2'-0" IN
FROM EACH BORDER IN LOW
CORNER

6"

6"

6" x6" TREATED TIMBER
BELOW PLAYGROUND
SURFACE, RE: 05/C3.1

UTILITY NOTES

SCALE:

PLAYGROUND DRAINAGE DETAIL05
1-1/2" = 1'-0"

1. THERE SHALL BE NO UTILITIES RUN UNDER  PLAYGROUND AREAS.

2. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO COORDINATE AND ORDER ALL NEW
SERVICES, LOCATE AND MAINTAIN IN SERVICE ALL EXISTING UTILITIES ENCOUNTERED
DURING  CONSTRUCTION UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED IN  THE DRAWINGS.  ANY PIPING,
WHICH CAN BE  REMOVED DURING CONSTRUCTION WITHOUT UNDUE  INTERRUPTION OF
SERVICE MAY BE REMOVED AND  REPLACED BY THE CONTRACTOR, AT HIS EXPENSE  WITH
THE PERMISSION OF THE OWNER.

3. BEFORE WORKING WITH OR AROUND EXISTING  UTILITIES, THE APPLICABLE UTILITY
COMPANY  SHALL BE CONTACTED BY THE CONTRACTOR.

4. WHEN CONNECTIONS ARE TO BE MADE TO EXISTING  PIPING AND STRUCTURES OR WHERE
CONSTRUCTION  IS IN THE VICINITY OF EXISTING PIPING, THE  LOCATION AND ELEVATION
OF THE EXISTING PIPING  SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED. NOTIFICATION SHALL BE  GIVEN TO
THE OWNER IF THE EXISTING PIPING IS  FOUND TO BE DIFFERENT THAN THAT SHOWN ON
THE  DRAWINGS.

5. FOR CLARITY OF THESE DRAWINGS, PIPES MAY  NOT BE DRAWN TO SCALE OR EXACTLY
LOCATED.

6. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SURFACE MOUNT EXTERIOR GRADE PHONE CABINET AND
PHONE. 48" MIN. TO 60" MAX. AFF. TO PROTRUDE 4" MAX. FROM FACE OF WALL. SEE
HOFFMAN ATC12124S TYPE 1 STEEL CABINET. PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT WALL COLOR.

7. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE INTERNET SERVICE AND COAX INSTALL AND LOCATIONS
WITH OWNER AND GSI REPRESENTATIVE.

7/9/2021
ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

Project No.   2021-008

31
65

5 
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
 R

O
AD

T1
N

, R
10

E,
 S

E 
1/

4,
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 2
, V

IL
LA

G
E 

O
F 

BE
VE

R
LY

 H
IL

LS
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

I

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
AT

E
BY

TS
S

D
N

.
TS

S
SU

R
.

TS
S

P.
M

.
TS

S

www.storeyengineering.com

N
o.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

48264 MANCHESTER
MACOMB, MI 48044

(586) 216-1043

ENGINEERING
GROUP, LLC

STOREY

SEG

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
O

F 
B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

93
5 

E 
SI

LV
ER

BE
LL

 R
O

AD
LA

KE
 O

R
IO

N
, M

I 4
83

60

TH
E 

G
O

D
D

A
R

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
- B

EV
ER

LY
 H

IL
LS

7-
9-

21
TS

S
1

R
C

O
C

 P
ER

M
IT

 S
U

BM
IS

SI
O

N
7-

19
-2

1
TS

S
2

EM
PL

O
YE

E 
PA

R
KI

N
G

 N
O

TE
S 

AD
D

ED

NOT TO BE USED AS CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

8-
12

-2
1

TS
S

3
R

EV
IS

E 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

S 
PE

R
 V

IL
LA

G
E 

R
EV

IE
W

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

SCALE:

PLAYGROUND DRAINAGE DETAIL09
1/2" = 1'-0"

SCALE: N/A'

GSI-2.0

PL
A

YG
R

O
U

N
D

 D
ET

A
IL

S 
- 2



















EXHIBIT B - PHASING PLAN 
 

 
P:\2021\21705\DOCS\Exhibits for Development Agreement\Proposed Constrcution Phasing.docx 

 

 
 DATE:  October 14, 2021 

 RE:  Goddard of Beverly Hills Development Agreement 

  Proposed Construction Phasing Plan 

 

The following outlines the proposed milestones for the construction phasing plan for the 
Goddard of Beverly Hills Preschool and Annex Building. 
The Preschool and all supporting sitework, including the entrance drive represents Phase 1 of 
the Construction; while the Annex and all ROW work directly in front of the Annex represents 
Phase 2 of the construction. 
  

A. Phase 1 - Preschool and supporting sitework: 

1. October 2021; Issue for Bids and Permits 

2. November 2021; Bids Due 

3. November 2021; Award Construction Contract 

4. March 2022; Foundations Complete 

5. May 2022; Building Shell Complete 

6. July 2022; Interior Complete/Temporary Certificate of Occupancy 

7. October 2022; Landscape Complete 

 

B. Phase 2 – Annex and Sitework adjacent to Annex:  

1. October 2021; Issue for Bids and Permits 

2. November 2021; Bids Due 

3. November 2021; Award Construction Contract 

4. April 2022; Foundations Complete 

5. July 2022; Building Shell Complete 

6. September 2022; Vanilla Box Interior Complete 

7. October 2022; Landscape Complete. 

 
 

  
 
cc:    Kellie McDonald, Goddard of Beverly Hills 

   



1

aerial - northeast

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



2

concept image - northeast entry    

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



3

concept image - north

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



4

concept image - south

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



5

concept image - west

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



6

concept image - plaza view 1

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



7

concept image - plaza view 2

goddard school 21-705beverly hills | michigan
 © 2021 Hobbs + black associates, inc. date printed:     07/28/21 file name:    p:\2021\21705\dwgs\design\stills\20210726 - rendering updates\20210721 rendering updates v3.indd

2021.07.28



TO:  DIR Richard Torongeau 

FROM:   LT Robert Ginther 

DATE: October 14, 2021 

RE: Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus Regional Grant Award #EMW-2020-FG-11012 Purchase 

BACKGROUND: 

Beverly Hills Public Safety, as the lead agency, along with four other partner public safety agencies 

(Berkley, Bloomfield Hills, Farmington, and Huntington Woods) applied for a regional grant under 

FEMA’s Assistance to Firefighter Grant (AFG) program and council recently resolved to accept the 

grant award of $608,163.64 on behalf of the consortium and act as the fiduciary. 

SCBA ASSESSMENT: 

The Partner Agencies Purchasing Committee, comprised of a representative from each participating 

agency, reviewed various Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) manufacturers. Through 

discussions and evaluations based on safety, fit, form, function, and cost of ownership.  The committee 

narrowed their selection and field tested two manufacturers’ product – the MSA G-1 and the Scott X-3.  

The committee chose to use our semi-annual training evolution at the Combined Regional Emergency 

Services Training (CREST) facility at Oakland Community College (OCC) to evaluate the two SCBA’s.  

This allowed our personnel to evaluate these units while crawling and climbing in darkness and around 

obstacles as well as live fire conditions.  After the public safety officer’s that were participating in the 

training wore each of the SCBA, they indicated their preferred choice on an evaluation to capture the 

data.  The criteria that was used included visibility, communications, ease of donning/doffing the units 

with the face mask, regulator connection, air cylinder change, buddy breathing/RIC use, heads-up 

display, Thermal Imaging Camera (TIC) low air alarm, and overall ease of use. 

Upon conclusion of the evaluation process, the MSA G-1 was clearly the highest rated SCBA. The 

evaluation data showed that this particular unit outperformed the Scott in every criteria.  The committee 

then met to review and discuss all of the data, and unanimously decided that the MSA G-1 SCBA best 

suited our needs.  Furthermore, the MSA G-1 system significantly increases our communications and 

interoperability with neighboring departments, as many are already using this system.  As improved 

communications and interoperability is also a performance benchmark of the grant award, the MSA G-1 

should be selected as the replacement SCBA for our consortium. 

PURCHASE OUTLINE: 

After careful consideration and review by the Partner Agencies Purchasing Committee the MSA G-1 

was selected as the preferred system.  Due to the vendor distribution model of MSA, Apollo Fire 

Equipment, 12584 Lakeshore Drive, Romeo, MI  48065 is the only vendor able to sell MSA SCBA 

products within Oakland County.  Because of this, the Partner Agencies Purchasing Committee is 

requesting that council waive competitive bids in order to award this purchase to the sole source 

meeting specifications, as allowed for in Chapter 12.1 of the Village Charter, to Apollo Fire 

Equipment, 12584 Lakeshore Drive, Romeo, MI  48065. 

B4



   

 

 

   

 

 

In order for funds not to be co-mingled, as required by FEMA as it relates to this grant, there will be two 

invoices per municipality that are deposited into two separate accounts.  The first set of invoices will be 

for the Local Match Amount of a minimum of $60,816.36 for the FEMA purchase of 94 SCBA's and 36 

additional face pieces as outlined in the grant award.  The total Local Match Amount for all five 

communities combined will be $67,489.88 and will be deposited in and paid out of a specific account 

for the grant as outlined in the attached project order budget. 

 

The second set of invoices will be for the necessary additional equipment that goes with the MSA G-1 

SCBA system that is not part of the grant award.  The amount for all five communities is $159,540.02 

for the purchase of additional equipment as outlined in the attached project order budget and quoted 

separately from the grant award.  These funds will be deposited in and paid out of the South Oakland 

Fire Association (SOFA) fiduciary account that the Village of Beverly Hills already maintains on behalf 

of that organization, of which the village is a member. 

 

The entire order will be delivered to the Beverly Hills Public Safety Department to be inventoried, as 

this is a required component of the grant. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Based upon the Background, SCBA Assessment, and Purchase Outline sole source justification detailed 

in this memo; as well as the council’s long term vision of providing a high level of fire protection and 

rescue response to both the residents and those visiting the village, the recommendation to purchase the 

necessary quantity of MSA G-1 SCBA and appurtenances for the SOFA Public Safety Purchasing 

Consortium from Apollo Fire Equipment, 12584 Lakeshore Drive, Romeo, MI  48065, is put forth 

for the council’s review and consideration. 

 
MUNICIPALITY LOCAL MATCH AMOUNT LOCAL NON-GRANT 

FUNDED AMOUNT 

Berkley $17,604.93 $45,106.06 

Beverly Hills $15,926.93 $54,467.93 

Bloomfield Hills $11,053.02 $15,240.41 

Farmington $13,352.36 $33,099.72 

Huntington Woods $9,552.65 $11,625.90 

TOTAL $67,489.88 $159,540.02 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

(1) Proposed Resolution 

(1) FEMA Award Notification Letter 

(1) Apollo Fire Equipment Sole Source Recognition Letter 

(1) Apollo Fire Equipment Quote – Grant Funded 

(1) Apollo Fire Equipment Quote – Additional Equipment 

(6) Project Order Budget 

 

 

 

 

 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 

A Resolution of the council of the 

Village of Beverly Hills 

Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus Regional Cooperative Purchase 

through the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program 

Grant Application # EMW-2020-FG-11012 

October 19, 2021 

BE IT RESOLVED that based upon the recommendation of the Partnering Agencies Purchasing 

Committee, which evaluated different SCBA manufacturers with safety, interoperability, 

communications, function, compatibility, and cost of ownership being the primary criteria for 

acceptance, the purchase of MSA G1 SCBA’s and ancillary equipment through Apollo Fire 

Equipment, 12584 Lakeshore Drive, Romeo, MI  48065 for the total amount of $835,193.54 be 

approved, and; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Local Match Amount portions of the consortium grant funded 

purchase for the partner agencies of the Cities of Berkley, Bloomfield Hills, Farmington, and 

Huntington Woods, and the Village of Beverly Hills, which totals $67,489.88, and is individually 

outlined in the project purchase budget, be invoiced to those municipalities by the village 

respectively, and; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Local Non-Grant Funded Cost portions of the consortium 

purchase for the partner agencies of the Cities of Berkley, Bloomfield Hills, Farmington, and 

Huntington Woods, and the village of Beverly Hills, which totals $159,540.02, and is 

individually outlined in the project purchase budget, be invoiced to those municipalities by the 

village respectively, and; 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the Village of Beverly Hills pay for its Local Match Amount and 

Total Local Non-Grant Funded Costs of the consortium purchase, which totals $70,394.86, 

utilizing available funds in Capital Expenditures account number 401-905-981.05. 



Award Letter
U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Washington, D.C. 20472

Effective date: 08/27/2021

Robert Ginther
BEVERLY HILLS, VILLAGE OF
18500 WEST 13 MILE ROAD
BEVERLY HILLS, MI 48025

EMW-2020-FG-11012

Dear Robert Ginther,

Congratulations on behalf of the Department of Homeland Security. Your application submitted for
the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) Grant funding opportunity has
been approved in the amount of $608,163.64 in Federal funding. As a condition of this grant, you
are required to contribute non-Federal funds equal to or greater than 10.0% of the Federal funds
awarded, or $60,816.36 for a total approved budget of $668,980.00. Please see the FY 2020 AFG
Notice of Funding Opportunity for information on how to meet this cost share requirement.

Before you request and receive any of the Federal funds awarded to you, you must establish
acceptance of the award through the FEMA Grants Outcomes (FEMA GO) system. By accepting
this award, you acknowledge that the terms of the following documents are incorporated into the
terms of your award:

Summary Award Memo - included in this document
Agreement Articles - included in this document
Obligating Document - included in this document
2020 AFG Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) - incorporated by reference

Please make sure you read, understand, and maintain a copy of these documents in your official file
for this award.

Sincerely,

Christopher Logan
Acting Assistant Administrator
Grant Programs Directorate



Summary Award Memo
Program: Fiscal Year 2020 Assistance to Firefighters Grant
Recipient: BEVERLY HILLS, VILLAGE OF
DUNS number: 082772856
Award number: EMW-2020-FG-11012

Summary description of award
The purpose of the Assistance to Firefighters Grant program is to protect the health and safety of
the public and firefighting personnel against fire and fire-related hazards. After careful
consideration, FEMA has determined that the recipient`s project or projects submitted as part of the
recipient`s application and detailed in the project narrative as well as the request details section of
the application - including budget information - was consistent with the Assistance to Firefighters
Grant Program`s purpose and was worthy of award.

Except as otherwise approved as noted in this award, the information you provided in your
application for FY 2020 Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 Assistance to Firefighters Grants funding is
incorporated into the terms and conditions of this award. This includes any documents submitted as
part of the application.

Amount awarded table
The amount of the award is detailed in the attached Obligating Document for Award.

The following are the budgeted estimates for object classes for this award (including Federal share
plus your cost share, if applicable):



Approved scope of work
After review of your application, FEMA has approved the below scope of work. Justifications are
provided for any differences between the scope of work in the original application and the approved
scope of work under this award. You must submit scope or budget revision requests for FEMA`s
prior approval, via an amendment request, as appropriate per 2 C.F.R. § 200.308 and the FY2020
AFG NOFO.

Approved request details:

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

Object Class Total

Personnel $0.00

Fringe benefits $0.00

Travel $0.00

Equipment $668,980.00

Supplies $0.00

Contractual $0.00

Construction $0.00

Other $0.00

Indirect charges $0.00

Federal $608,163.64

Non-federal $60,816.36

Total $668,980.00

Program Income $0.00



SCBA: SCBA Unit includes: Harness/Backpack, Face Piece and 2
cylinders

DESCRIPTION

94 - 4500 PSI SCBA, w/standard harness, chest strap, adjustable swiveling lumbar, w/two
(2) 45 min low profile air bottle cylinders w/quick-connect and a mask @ $7295.00 per unit =
$696,710.00 and 36 - Additional masks w/4pt harness so that every fire fighter has a
personal face piece @ $305.00 per unit = $10,980.00

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET
CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 94 $7,000.00 $658,000.00

CHANGE FROM APPLICATION

Quantity from 1 to 94
Price from $696,710.00 to $7,000.00

JUSTIFICATION
This reduction is because the cost you requested for SCBA units exceeds the average price
range calculated from market research and prior awards for the same item.

Face Pieces (not associated with SCBA requests)

DESCRIPTION

36 - Additional masks w/4pt harness so that every fire fighter has a personal face piece @
$305.00 per unit = $10,980.00

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL BUDGET
CLASS

EquipmentCost 1 36 $305.00 $10,980.00

CHANGE FROM APPLICATION

Item created

JUSTIFICATION
The award reflects a change from the amount requested in the application. Items were
originally grouped together in one-line item. Each item requested is now listed as a separate
line item.



Agreement Articles
Program: Fiscal Year 2020 Assistance to Firefighters Grant 
Recipient: BEVERLY HILLS, VILLAGE OF 
DUNS number: 082772856 
Award number: EMW-2020-FG-11012

Table of contents



Article
1

Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, Representations and
Certifications

Article
2

DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances

Article
3

Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS

Article
4

Activities Conducted Abroad

Article
5

Age Discrimination Act of 1975

Article
6

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

Article
7

Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information

Article
8

Civil Rights Act of 1964 – Title VI

Article
9

Civil Rights Act of 1968

Article
10

Copyright

Article
11

Debarment and Suspension

Article
12

Drug-Free Workplace Regulations

Article
13

Duplication of Benefits

Article
14

Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act) – Title IX

Article
15

Energy Policy and Conservation Act

Article
16

False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies

Article
17

Federal Debt Status

Article
18

Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving

Article
19

Fly America Act of 1974

Article
20

Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990

Article
21

Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI)

Article
22

Lobbying Prohibitions

Article
23

National Environmental Policy Act

Article
24

Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations

Article
25

Non-Supplanting Requirement



Article
26

Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements

Article
27

Patents and Intellectual Property Rights

Article
28

Procurement of Recovered Materials

Article
29

Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Article
30

Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance

Article
31

Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation

Article
32

SAFECOM

Article
33

Terrorist Financing

Article
34

Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA)

Article
35

Universal Identifier and System of Award Management

Article
36

USA PATRIOT Act of 2001

Article
37

Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags

Article
38

Whistleblower Protection Act

Article
39

Acceptance of Post Award Changes

Article
40

Prior Approval for Modification of Approved Budget

Article
41

Disposition of Equipment Acquired Under the Federal Award

Article
42

Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) Review

Article
43

Award Performance Goals



Article 1 Assurances, Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
Representations and Certifications
DHS financial assistance recipients must complete either the Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Standard Form 424B Assurances – Non-
Construction Programs, or OMB Standard Form 424D Assurances –
Construction Programs, as applicable. Certain assurances in these documents
may not be applicable to your program, and the DHS financial assistance office
(DHS FAO) may require applicants to certify additional assurances. Applicants
are required to fill out the assurances applicable to their program as instructed
by the awarding agency. Please contact the DHS FAO if you have any
questions. DHS financial assistance recipients are required to follow the
applicable provisions of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards located at Title 2, Code
of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) Part 200, and adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part
3002. By accepting this agreement, the recipient and its executives, as defined
in 2 C.F.R. § 170.315, certify that the recipient policies are in accordance with
OMB guidance located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, all applicable federal laws, and
relevant Executive guidance.



Article 2 DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances
All recipients, subrecipients, successors, transferees, and assignees must
acknowledge and agree to comply with applicable provisions governing DHS
access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. 1.
Recipients must cooperate with any compliance reviews or compliance
investigations conducted by DHS. 2. Recipients must give DHS access to, and
the right to examine and copy, records, accounts, and other documents and
sources of information related to the federal financial assistance award and
permit access to facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as
may be necessary, as required by DHS regulations and other applicable laws or
program guidance. 3. Recipients must submit timely, complete, and accurate
reports to the appropriate DHS officials and maintain appropriate backup
documentation to support the reports. 4. Recipients must comply with all other
special reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed
by law or detailed in program guidance. 5. Recipients of federal financial
assistance from DHS must complete the DHS Civil Rights Evaluation Tool
within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Notice of Award or, for State
Administrative Agencies, thirty (30) days from receipt of the DHS Civil Rights
Evaluation Tool from DHS or its awarding component agency. After the initial
submission for the first award under which this term applies, recipients are
required to provide this information once every two (2) years if they have an
active award, not every time an award is made. Recipients should submit the
completed tool, including supporting materials, to
CivilRightsEvaluation@hq.dhs.gov. This tool clarifies the civil rights obligations
and related reporting requirements contained in the DHS Standard Terms and
Conditions. Subrecipients are not required to complete and submit this tool to
DHS. The evaluation tool can be found at https://www.dhs.gov/publication/dhs-
civil-rights-evaluation-tool. The DHS Office for Civil Rights and Civil Liberties
will consider, in its discretion, granting an extension if the recipient identifies
steps and a timeline for completing the tool. Recipients should request
extensions by emailing the request to CivilRightsEvaluation@hq.dhs.gov prior
to expiration of the 30-day deadline.

Article 3 Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS
Recipients must acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing
statements, press releases, requests for proposal, bid invitations, and other
documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with
federal funds.

Article 4 Activities Conducted Abroad
Recipients must ensure that project activities carried on outside the United
States are coordinated as necessary with appropriate government authorities
and that appropriate licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained.



Article 5 Age Discrimination Act of 1975
Recipients must comply with the requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of
1975, Pub. L. No. 94-135 (1975) (codified as amended at Title 42, U.S. Code, §
6101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in any program
or activity receiving federal financial assistance.

Article 6 Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
Recipients must comply with the requirements of Titles I, II, and III of the
Americans with Disabilities Act, Pub. L. No. 101-336 (1990) (codified as
amended at 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101–12213), which prohibits recipients from
discriminating on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public
and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and
certain testing entities.

Article 7 Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable
Information
Recipients who collect personally identifiable information (PII) are required to
have a publicly available privacy policy that describes standards on the usage
and maintenance of the PII they collect. DHS defines PII as any information that
permits the identity of an individual to be directly or indirectly inferred, including
any information that is linked or linkable to that individual. Recipients may also
find the DHS Privacy Impact Assessments: Privacy Guidance at
http://www.dhs.gov/xlibrary/assets/privacy/privacy_pia_guidance_june2010.pdf
and Privacy Template at
https://www.dhs.gov/sites/default/files/publications/privacy_pia_template
2017.pdf as useful resources respectively.

Article 8 Civil Rights Act of 1964 – Title VI
Recipients must comply with the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), which provides
that no person in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or
national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal
financial assistance. DHS implementing regulations for the Act are found at 6
C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part 7.



Article 9 Civil Rights Act of 1968
Recipients must comply with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, Pub. L.
No. 90-284, as amended through Pub. L. 113-4, which prohibits recipients from
discriminating in the sale, rental, financing, and advertising of dwellings, or in
the provision of services in connection therewith, on the basis of race, color,
national origin, religion, disability, familial status, and sex (see 42 U.S.C. § 3601
et seq.), as implemented by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development at 24 C.F.R. Part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination
includes the requirement that new multifamily housing with four or more
dwelling units—i.e., the public and common use areas and individual apartment
units (all units in buildings with elevators and ground-floor units in buildings
without elevators)—be designed and constructed with certain accessible
features. (See 24 C.F.R. Part 100, Subpart D.)

Article 10 Copyright
Recipients must affix the applicable copyright notices of 17 U.S.C. §§ 401 or
402 and an acknowledgement of U.S. Government sponsorship (including the
award number) to any work first produced under federal financial assistance
awards.

Article 11 Debarment and Suspension
Recipients are subject to the non-procurement debarment and suspension
regulations implementing Executive Orders (E.O.) 12549 and 12689, which are
at 2 C.F.R. Part 180 as adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000. These
regulations restrict federal financial assistance awards, subawards, and
contracts with certain parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise
excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal assistance programs or
activities.

Article 12 Drug-Free Workplace Regulations
Recipients must comply with drug-free workplace requirements in Subpart B (or
Subpart C, if the recipient is an individual) of 2 C.F.R. Part 3001, which adopts
the Government-wide implementation (2 C.F.R. Part 182) of Sec. 5152-5158 of
the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. §§ 8101-8106).

Article 13 Duplication of Benefits
Any cost allocable to a particular federal financial assistance award provided for
in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E may not be charged to other federal financial
assistance awards to overcome fund deficiencies; to avoid restrictions imposed
by federal statutes, regulations, or federal financial assistance award terms and
conditions; or for other reasons. However, these prohibitions would not preclude
recipients from shifting costs that are allowable under two or more awards in
accordance with existing federal statutes, regulations, or the federal financial
assistance award terms and conditions.



Article 14 Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in Education Act) –
Title IX
Recipients must comply with the requirements of Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972, Pub. L. 92-318 (1972) (codified as amended at 20
U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.), which provide that no person in the United States will,
on the basis of sex, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of,
or be subjected to discrimination under any educational program or activity
receiving federal financial assistance. DHS implementing regulations are
codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19.

Article 15 Energy Policy and Conservation Act
Recipients must comply with the requirements of the Energy Policy and
Conservation Act, Pub. L. 94- 163 (1975) (codified as amended at 42 U.S.C. §
6201 et seq.), which contain policies relating to energy efficiency that are
defined in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with this Act.

Article 16 False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies
Recipients must comply with the requirements of the False Claims Act, 31
U.S.C. §§ 3729-3733, which prohibit the submission of false or fraudulent
claims for payment to the federal government. (See 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801-3812,
which details the administrative remedies for false claims and statements
made.)

Article 17 Federal Debt Status
All recipients are required to be non-delinquent in their repayment of any federal
debt. Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes,
audit disallowances, and benefit overpayments. (See OMB Circular A-129.)

Article 18 Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging while Driving
Recipients are encouraged to adopt and enforce policies that ban text
messaging while driving as described in E.O. 13513, including conducting
initiatives described in Section 3(a) of the Order when on official government
business or when performing any work for or on behalf of the federal
government.

Article 19 Fly America Act of 1974
Recipients must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers (air carriers
holding certificates under 49 U.S.C. § 41102) for international air transportation
of people and property to the extent that such service is available, in
accordance with the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices
Act of 1974, 49 U.S.C. § 40118, and the interpretative guidelines issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States in the March 31, 1981, amendment to
Comptroller General Decision B-138942.



Article 20 Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990
In accordance with Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, 15
U.S.C. § 2225a, recipients must ensure that all conference, meeting,
convention, or training space funded in whole or in part with federal funds
complies with the fire prevention and control guidelines of the Federal Fire
Prevention and Control Act of 1974, (codified as amended at 15 U.S.C. § 2225.)

Article 21 Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title VI)
Recipients must comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (42 U.S.C.
§ 2000d et seq.) prohibition against discrimination on the basis of national
origin, which requires that recipients of federal financial assistance take
reasonable steps to provide meaningful access to persons with limited English
proficiency (LEP) to their programs and services. For additional assistance and
information regarding language access obligations, please refer to the DHS
Recipient Guidance: https://www.dhs.gov/guidance- published-help-
department- supported-organizations-provide-meaningful-access-people-
limited and additional resources on http://www.lep.gov.

Article 22 Lobbying Prohibitions
Recipients must comply with 31 U.S.C. § 1352, which provides that none of the
funds provided under a federal financial assistance award may be expended by
the recipient to pay any person to influence, or attempt to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any
federal action related to a federal award or contract, including any extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification.

Article 23 National Environmental Policy Act
Recipients must comply with the requirements of the National Environmental
Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA), Pub. L. 91-190 (1970) (codified as amended at 42
U.S.C. § 4321 et seq.) and the Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ)
Regulations for Implementing the Procedural Provisions of NEPA, which require
recipients to use all practicable means within their authority, and consistent with
other essential considerations of national policy, to create and maintain
conditions under which people and nature can exist in productive harmony and
fulfill the social, economic, and other needs of present and future generations of
Americans.

Article 24 Nondiscrimination in Matters Pertaining to Faith-Based Organizations
It is DHS policy to ensure the equal treatment of faith- based organizations in
social service programs administered or supported by DHS or its component
agencies, enabling those organizations to participate in providing important
social services to beneficiaries. Recipients must comply with the equal
treatment policies and requirements contained in 6 C.F.R. Part 19 and other
applicable statues, regulations, and guidance governing the participations of
faith-based organizations in individual DHS programs.



Article 25 Non-Supplanting Requirement
Recipients receiving federal financial assistance awards made under programs
that prohibit supplanting by law must ensure that federal funds do not replace
(supplant) funds that have been budgeted for the same purpose through non-
federal sources.

Article 26 Notice of Funding Opportunity Requirements
All the instructions, guidance, limitations, and other conditions set forth in the
Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for this program are incorporated here
by reference in the award terms and conditions. All recipients must comply with
any such requirements set forth in the program NOFO.

Article 27 Patents and Intellectual Property Rights
Recipients are subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, 35 U.S.C. § 200 et seq, unless
otherwise provided by law. Recipients are subject to the specific requirements
governing the development, reporting, and disposition of rights to inventions
and patents resulting from federal financial assistance awards located at 37
C.F.R. Part 401 and the standard patent rights clause located at 37 C.F.R. §
401.14.

Article 28 Procurement of Recovered Materials
States, political subdivisions of states, and their contractors must comply with
Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, Pub. L. 89-272 (1965), (codified
as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §
6962.) The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items
designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40
C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials
practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition.

Article 29 Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Recipients must comply with the requirements of Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Pub. L. 93-112 (1973) (codified as amended at 29
U.S.C. § 794) which provides that no otherwise qualified handicapped
individuals in the United States will, solely by reason of the handicap, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial
assistance.

Article 30 Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance
If the total value of any currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and
procurement contracts from all federal awarding agencies exceeds
$10,000,000 for any period of time during the period of performance of this
federal award, then the recipients must comply with the requirements set forth
in the government-wide Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and
Performance Matters located at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix XII, the full text of
which is incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions.



Article 31 Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation
Recipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth in the
government-wide award term on Reporting Subawards and Executive
Compensation located at 2 C.F.R. Part 170, Appendix A, the full text of which is
incorporated here by reference in the award terms and conditions.

Article 32 SAFECOM
Recipients receiving federal financial assistance awards made under programs
that provide emergency communication equipment and its related activities
must comply with the SAFECOM Guidance for Emergency Communication
Grants, including provisions on technical standards that ensure and enhance
interoperable communications.

Article 33 Terrorist Financing
Recipients must comply with E.O. 13224 and U.S. laws that prohibit
transactions with, and the provisions of resources and support to, individuals
and organizations associated with terrorism. Recipients are legally responsible
to ensure compliance with the Order and laws.

Article 34 Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA)
Recipients must comply with the requirements of the government-wide financial
assistance award term which implements Section 106(g) of the Trafficking
Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), codified as amended at 22 U.S.C. §
7104. The award term is located at 2 C.F.R. § 175.15, the full text of which is
incorporated here by reference.

Article 35 Universal Identifier and System of Award Management
Recipients are required to comply with the requirements set forth in the
government-wide financial assistance award term regarding the System for
Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements located at 2 C.F.R.
Part 25, Appendix A, the full text of which is incorporated here by reference.

Article 36 USA PATRIOT Act of 2001
Recipients must comply with requirements of Section 817 of the Uniting and
Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept
and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA PATRIOT Act), Pub. L. No. 107-56,
which amends 18 U.S.C. §§ 175–175c.

Article 37 Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags
Recipients must obtain permission from their DHS FAO prior to using the DHS
seal(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency
officials, including use of the United States Coast Guard seal, logo, crests or
reproductions of flags or likenesses of Coast Guard officials.



Article 38 Whistleblower Protection Act
Recipients must comply with the statutory requirements for whistleblower
protections (if applicable) at 10 U.S.C § 2409, 41 U.S.C. § 4712, and 10 U.S.C.
§ 2324, 41 U.S.C. §§ 4304 and 4310.

Article 39 Acceptance of Post Award Changes
In the event FEMA determines that changes are necessary to the award
document after an award has been made, including changes to period of
performance or terms and conditions, recipients will be notified of the changes
in writing. Once notification has been made, any subsequent request for funds
will indicate recipient acceptance of the changes to the award. Please call the
FEMA/GMD Call Center at (866) 927-5646 or via e-mail to ASK-
GMD@fema.dhs.gov if you have any questions.

Article 40 Prior Approval for Modification of Approved Budget
Before making any change to the FEMA approved budget for this award, you
must request prior written approval from FEMA where required by 2 C.F.R. §
200.308. FEMA is also utilizing its discretion to impose an additional restriction
under 2 C.F.R. § 200.308(f) regarding the transfer of funds among direct cost
categories, programs, functions, or activities. Therefore, for awards with an
approved budget where the federal share is greater than the simplified
acquisition threshold (currently $250,000), you may not transfer funds among
direct cost categories, programs, functions, or activities without prior written
approval from FEMA where the cumulative amount of such transfers exceeds or
is expected to exceed ten percent (10%) of the total budget FEMA last
approved. You must report any deviations from your FEMA approved budget in
the first Federal Financial Report (SF-425) you submit following any budget
deviation, regardless of whether the budget deviation requires prior written
approval.

Article 41 Disposition of Equipment Acquired Under the Federal Award
When original or replacement equipment acquired under this award by the
recipient or its subrecipients is no longer needed for the original project or
program or for other activities currently or previously supported by a federal
awarding agency, you must request instructions from FEMA to make proper
disposition of the equipment pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.313.



Article 42 Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) Review
DHS/FEMA funded activities that may require an EHP review are subject to the
FEMA Environmental Planning and Historic Preservation (EHP) review process.
This review does not address all federal, state, and local requirements.
Acceptance of federal funding requires recipient to comply with all federal,
state, and local laws. DHS/FEMA is required to consider the potential impacts
to natural and cultural resources of all projects funded by DHS/FEMA grant
funds, through its EHP Review process, as mandated by the National
Environmental Policy Act; National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as
amended; National Flood Insurance Program regulations; and, any other
applicable laws and Executive Orders. To access the FEMA EHP screening
form and instructions, go to the DHS/FEMA website at:
https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/90195. In order to
initiate EHP review of your project(s), you must complete all relevant sections of
this form and submit it to the Grant Programs Directorate (GPD) along with all
other pertinent project information. The EHP review process must be completed
before funds are released to carry out the proposed project; otherwise,
DHS/FEMA may not be able to fund the project due to noncompliance with EHP
laws, executive order, regulations, and policies. If ground disturbing activities
occur during construction, applicant will monitor ground disturbance, and if any
potential archeological resources are discovered, applicant will immediately
cease work in that area and notify the pass-through entity, if applicable, and
DHS/FEMA.

Article 43 Award Performance Goals
FEMA will measure the recipient’s performance of the grant by comparing the
number of items requested in its application, the numbers acquired (ordered,
paid, and received) within the period of performance. In order to measure
performance, FEMA may request information throughout the period of
performance. In its final performance report submitted at closeout, the recipient
is required to report on the recipients compliance with the applicable industry,
local, state and national standards described in the NOFO.



Obligating document
1.Agreement No.
EMW-2020-FG-
11012

2. Amendment
No.
N/A

3. Recipient
No.
386032091

4. Type of
Action
AWARD

5. Control No.
WX00641N2021T

6. Recipient Name and
Address 
BEVERLY HILLS,
VILLAGE OF 
18500 W 13 MILE RD 
FRANKLIN, MI 48025

7. Issuing FEMA Office and
Address
Grant Programs Directorate 
500 C Street, S.W. 
Washington DC, 20528-7000
1-866-927-5646

8. Payment Office and
Address
FEMA, Financial Services
Branch 
500 C Street, S.W., Room
723 
Washington DC, 20742

9. Name of Recipient
Project Officer
Robert Ginther

9a. Phone
No.
2487210758

10. Name of FEMA Project
Coordinator
Assistance to Firefighters
Grants Grant Program

10a.
Phone
No.
1-866-
274-0960

11. Effective Date of
This Action

08/27/2021

12. Method of
Payment

OTHER - FEMA
GO

13. Assistance
Arrangement

COST SHARING

14. Performance
Period
09/03/2021 to
09/02/2023 
Budget Period
09/03/2021 to
09/02/2023

15. Description of Action a. (Indicate funding data for awards or financial
changes)

Program
Name
Abbreviation

Assistance
Listings
No.

Accounting
Data(ACCS
Code)

Prior
Total
Award

Amount
Awarded
This Action
+ or (-)

Current
Total
Award

Cumulative
Non-Federal
Commitment

AFG 97.044
2021-F0-
GB01 -
P410-xxxx-
4101-D

$0.00 $608,163.64 $608,163.64 $60,816.36

Totals $0.00 $608,163.64 $608,163.64 $60,816.36
b. To describe changes other than funding data or financial changes, attach
schedule and check here:
N/A
16.FOR NON-DISASTER PROGRAMS: RECIPIENT IS REQUIRED TO SIGN AND
RETURN THREE (3) COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT TO FEMA (See Block 7 for
address)
This field is not applicable for digitally signed grant agreements



17. RECIPIENT SIGNATORY OFFICIAL (Name and Title) DATE
18. FEMA SIGNATORY OFFICIAL (Name and Title)
Christopher Logan, Acting Assistant Administrator Grant
Programs Directorate

DATE
08/27/2021



 

   

           
           
           
           
  
 

 

 

September 16, 2021 
 
 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
This letter confirms that Apollo Fire Equipment Co is the sole authorized distributor of 
MSA SCBA, SCBA Cylinders, and other SCBA accessories for the Municipal Fire 
Service Market for Oakland County, Michigan. 
 
By way of background, in the fire service / first responder markets, MSA imposes 
specific requirements upon our distributors, which can result in a small number of 
distributors authorized to call upon a particular region. We impose these 
requirements because the equipment we manufacture and sell requires the 
involvement of partners with special knowledge, training and experience. Accordingly 
MSA’s distributors are obligated to acquire and maintain extensive knowledge, 
training, and experience necessary to properly educate, assist and service our end 
user customers before, during and after the sale. MSA’s fire service / first responder 
distributor qualification requirements are likewise intended to ensure the highest 
possible end user customer experience.   
 
If you desire additional information about MSA, its product lines, or channel partners, 
please do not hesitate to contact me.  Thank you for your interest in our products. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Scott McGuire 
North American Sales Channels Specialist 
Phone: 724-742-8028 
Email: scott.mcguire@MSAsafety.com 
 

2
1
 
G
a
m
m
a



Quotation

Apollo Fire Equipment Company
Apollo Fire Apparatus Repair, Inc. DATE:

12584 Lakeshore Drive, Romeo, MI  48065 TERMS:

Phone: (800) 626-7783  Fax: (586) 752-6907 F.O.B:

VALID FOR:

QUOTE #: LEAD TIME:

BILL TO: SHIP TO:

ADDRESS: ADDRESS:

ATTN: ATTN:

PHONE: FAX: E-MAIL:

QTY PART NUMBER UNIT PRICE TOTAL

94

A-G1FS 

442MD2C2LAR $4,926.40 $463,081.60

188 10175708 $940.39 $176,793.32

94 10161810 $275.22 $25,870.68

36 10161810 $275.22 $9,907.92

N/C

SUBTOTAL $675,653.52

SHIPPING N/C

TAX N/A

OTHER N/A

TOTAL $675,653.52

jpavoni@apollofire.com

DESCRIPTION

Jo Ellen Pavoni, VP Sales & Marketing

Additional G1 Facepiece, Nose Cup, Cloth Neck Strap              

In-Service Training 

Cell: (616) 291-6534

G1 Facepiece, Nose Cup, Cloth Neck Strap              

Low Profile Cylinder, Quick Connect, 4500psi, 45 minute 

Thank you for the opportunity to quote on your Fire Department needs.

18600 West Thirteen Mile Rd, Beverly Hills, MI 48025

Robert Ginther

G1 SCBA - 4500psi, Standard Harness, Chest Strap, 

Extendaire II, Adjustable swiveling Lumbar, Rechargeable 

Battery, Piurge Cover Regulator, Buddy Breathing Quick 

Connect, and Voice Box integrated into pack strap          

Beverly Hills Public Safety 

Robert Ginther 

MSA G1 SCBA 

9/16/2021

30 days net 

until October 27, 2021 

TBD

Beverly Hills Public Safety 

mailto:jpavoni@apollofire.com
mailto:jpavoni@apollofire.com


Quotation

Apollo Fire Equipment Company
Apollo Fire Apparatus Repair, Inc. DATE:

12584 Lakeshore Drive, Romeo, MI  48065 TERMS:

Phone: (800) 626-7783  Fax: (586) 752-6907 F.O.B:

VALID FOR:

QUOTE #: LEAD TIME:

BILL TO: SHIP TO:

ADDRESS: ADDRESS:

ATTN: ATTN:

PHONE: FAX: E-MAIL:

QTY PART NUMBER UNIT PRICE TOTAL

59

A-G1FS 

442MD2C2LER $830.90 $49,023.10

5 10175708 $940.39 $4,701.95

33 10161810 $275.22 $9,082.26

66 10148741-SP $275.35 $18,173.10

12 10158385 $533.30 $6,399.60

10 10206313 $3,207.76 $32,077.60

10 RBL303 $244.63 $2,446.30

10 10175710 $1,156.15 $11,561.50

9 10162403 $349.43 $3,144.87

125 10144231-SP $83.22 $10,402.50

125 10046570 $59.94 $7,492.50

8 10042346 $332.48 $2,659.84

127 LXFB30-B $13.50 $1,714.50

8 DSD1100 $82.55 $660.40

SUBTOTAL $159,540.02

SHIPPING N/C

TAX N/A

OTHER N/A

TOTAL $159,540.02

jpavoni@apollofire.com

DESCRIPTION

Jo Ellen Pavoni, VP Sales & Marketing

G1 RIT System 

True North L3 RIT Bag  

G1 60 minute, 4500psi, RIT Cylinder 

Adapter Asembly, QC to 1/4 NPT F

APR  G1 Adapter, (single canister) 

Cell: (616) 291-6534

G1 Smart Charger - 6 Bank for  rechargable batteries      

CBRN Canister 

Rechargeable Spare Battery 

G1 Facepiece, Nose Cup, Cloth Neck Strap                 

Thank you for the opportunity to quote on your Fire Department needs.

Lightening X Mask Bag (black) 

True North Soft Duffle Bags (black) 

18600 West Thirteen Mile Rd, Beverly Hills, MI 48025

Robert Ginther

Type H Filter Cartridge (20 pack) 

G1 SCBA same with TIC - additional cost per pack with 

TIC 

Low Profile Cylinder, Quick Connect, 4500psi, 45 minute

Beverly Hills Public Safety 

18600 West Thirteen Mile Rd, Beverly Hills, MI 48025

Robert Ginther 

MSA G1 SCBA 

10/11/2021

30 days net 

until October 27, 2021 

TBD

Beverly Hills Public Safety 

mailto:jpavoni@apollofire.com
mailto:jpavoni@apollofire.com


Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Regional Cooperative Purchase

through the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program

Grant Application # EMW-2020-FG-11012

COMBINED TOTAL - FEMA SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012

SCBA (1 harness, 2 bottles, 1  mask) COST QTY TOTAL

4500 PSI SCBA, STANDARD HARNESS, CHEST STRAP, EXTENDAIRE II, ADJUSTABLE SWIVELING 

LUMBAR, RECHARGEABLE BATTERY, PURGE COVER REGULATOR, BUDDY BREATHING QUICK 

CONNECT, AND VOICE BOX INTEGRATED INTO PACK STRAP

$4,926.40 94 $463,081.60 98

MSA G1 4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 188 $176,793.32

FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 94 $25,870.68

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 36 $9,907.92

0.1 TOTAL COST $675,653.52

$0.01

FEDERAL 

FUNDING 

ASSITANCE

$608,163.64

Minimum 10% Local Match Amount

Per Award Letter

$60,816.36 LOCAL MATCH 

AMOUNT

$67,489.88

COMBINED TOTAL - NON-GRANT FUNDED ADDITIONAL SYSTEM EQUIPMENT

ADDITION OF MSA G1 TIC OPTION $830.90 59 $49,023.10

ADDITIONAL MSA G1  4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 5 $4,701.95

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 33 $9,082.26

MSA G1 RECHARGABLE BATTERY $275.35 66 $18,173.10

MSA G1 6 BANK RECHARGABLE BATTERY SMART CHARGER $533.30 12 $6,399.60

MSA G1 RIT SYSTEM $3,207.76 10 $32,077.60

TRUE NORTH L3 RIT BAG $244.63 10 $2,446.30

MSA G1 60 Min 4500PSI RIT Bottle $1,156.15 10 $11,561.50

MSA G1 ADAPTER ASSEMBLY - QC TO 1/4" NPT $349.43 9 $3,144.87

APR ADAPTER (large single canister model) $83.22 125 $10,402.50

CBRN CANISTER $59.94 125 $7,492.50

P100 CANISTER (20 pack) $332.48 8 $2,659.84

LIGHTING X MASK BAG (black) $13.50 127 $1,714.50

SOFT DUFFLE BAGS (black) $82.55 8 $660.40

TOTAL LOCAL 

NON-GRANT 

FUNDED  COST

$159,540.02

SEATED 

POSITIONS



Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Regional Cooperative Purchase

through the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program

Grant Application # EMW-2020-FG-11012

BERKLEY - FEMA SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012

SCBA (1 harness, 2 bottles, 1  mask) COST QTY TOTAL

4500 PSI SCBA, STANDARD HARNESS, CHEST STRAP, EXTENDAIRE II, ADJUSTABLE SWIVELING 

LUMBAR, RECHARGEABLE BATTERY, PURGE COVER REGULATOR, BUDDY BREATHING QUICK 

CONNECT, AND VOICE BOX INTEGRATED INTO PACK STRAP

$4,926.40 22 $108,380.80 22

4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 44 $41,377.16

FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 22 $6,054.84

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 15 $4,128.30

0.1 TOTAL COST $159,941.10

0.1 FEDERAL 

FUNDING 

ASSITANCE

$142,336.17

LOCAL MATCH 

AMOUNT

$17,604.93

BERKLEY - NON-GRANT FUNDED ADDITIONAL SCBA SYSTEM EQUIPMENT

ADDITION OF MSA G1 TIC OPTION $830.90 22 $18,279.80

ADDITIONAL MSA G1  4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 0 $0.00

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 0 $0.00

MSA G1 RECHARGABLE BATTERY $275.35 18 $4,956.30

MSA G1 6 BANK RECHARGABLE BATTERY SMART CHARGER $533.30 3 $1,599.90

MSA G1 RIT SYSTEM $3,207.76 3 $9,623.28

TRUE NORTH L3 RIT BAG $244.63 3 $733.89

MSA G1 60 Min 4500PSI RIT Bottle $1,156.15 3 $3,468.45

MSA G1 ADAPTER ASSEMBLY - QC TO 1/4" NPT $349.43 2 $698.86

APR ADAPTER (large single canister model) $83.22 32 $2,663.04

CBRN CANISTER $59.94 32 $1,918.08

P100 CANISTER (20 pack) $332.48 2 $664.96

LIGHTING X MASK BAG (black) $13.50 37 $499.50

SOFT DUFFLE BAGS (black) $82.55 0 $0.00

TOTAL LOCAL 

NON-GRANT 

FUNDED  COST

$45,106.06

SEATED 

POSITIONS

Amount to be invoiced to the City of Berkley

Invoice description to be - FEMA AFG SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012 Local Match Amount

Amount to be invoiced to the City of Berkley

Invoice description to be - Non-Grant Funded Additional SCBA System Equipment



Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Regional Cooperative Purchase

through the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program

Grant Application # EMW-2020-FG-11012

BEVERLY HILLS - FEMA SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012

SCBA (1 harness, 2 bottles, 1  mask) COST QTY TOTAL

4500 PSI SCBA, STANDARD HARNESS, CHEST STRAP, EXTENDAIRE II, ADJUSTABLE SWIVELING 

LUMBAR, RECHARGEABLE BATTERY, PURGE COVER REGULATOR, BUDDY BREATHING QUICK 

CONNECT, AND VOICE BOX INTEGRATED INTO PACK STRAP

$4,926.40 26 $128,086.40 22

4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 52 $48,900.28

FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 26 $7,155.72

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 0 $0.00

0.1 TOTAL COST $184,142.40

0.1 FEDERAL 

FUNDING 

ASSITANCE

$168,215.47

LOCAL MATCH 

AMOUNT

$15,926.93

BEVERLY HILLS - NON-GRANT FUNDED ADDITIONAL SCBA SYSTEM EQUIPMENT

ADDITION OF MSA G1 TIC OPTION $830.90 26 $21,603.40

ADDITIONAL MSA G1  4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 5 $4,701.95

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 6 $1,651.32

MSA G1 RECHARGABLE BATTERY $275.35 18 $4,956.30

MSA G1 6 BANK RECHARGABLE BATTERY SMART CHARGER $533.30 3 $1,599.90

MSA G1 RIT SYSTEM $3,207.76 3 $9,623.28

TRUE NORTH L3 RIT BAG $244.63 3 $733.89

MSA G1 60 Min 4500PSI RIT Bottle $1,156.15 3 $3,468.45

MSA G1 ADAPTER ASSEMBLY - QC TO 1/4" NPT $349.43 2 $698.86

APR ADAPTER (large single canister model) $83.22 27 $2,246.94

CBRN CANISTER $59.94 27 $1,618.38

P100 CANISTER (20 pack) $332.48 2 $664.96

LIGHTING X MASK BAG (black) $13.50 30 $405.00

SOFT DUFFLE BAGS (black) $82.55 6 $495.30

TOTAL LOCAL 

NON-GRANT 

FUNDED  COST

$54,467.93

SEATED 

POSITIONS

Amount to be invoiced to the Village of Beverly Hills

Invoice description to be - FEMA AFG SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012 Local Match Amount

Amount to be invoiced to the Village of Beverly Hills

Invoice description to be - Non-Grant Funded Additional SCBA System Equipment



Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Regional Cooperative Purchase

through the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program

Grant Application # EMW-2020-FG-11012

BLOOMFIELD HILLS - FEMA SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012

SCBA (1 harness, 2 bottles, 1  mask) COST QTY TOTAL

4500 PSI SCBA, STANDARD HARNESS, CHEST STRAP, EXTENDAIRE II, ADJUSTABLE SWIVELING 

LUMBAR, RECHARGEABLE BATTERY, PURGE COVER REGULATOR, BUDDY BREATHING QUICK 

CONNECT, AND VOICE BOX INTEGRATED INTO PACK STRAP

$4,926.40 14 $68,969.60 17

4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 28 $26,330.92

FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 14 $3,853.08

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 9 $2,476.98

0.1 TOTAL COST $101,630.58

0.1 FEDERAL 

FUNDING 

ASSITANCE

$90,577.56

LOCAL MATCH 

AMOUNT

$11,053.02

BLOOMFIELD HILLS - NON-GRANT FUNDED ADDITIONAL SCBA SYSTEM EQUIPMENT

ADDITION OF MSA G1 TIC OPTION $830.90 0 $0.00

ADDITIONAL MSA G1  4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 0 $0.00

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 3 $825.66

MSA G1 RECHARGABLE BATTERY $275.35 12 $3,304.20

MSA G1 6 BANK RECHARGABLE BATTERY SMART CHARGER $533.30 2 $1,066.60

MSA G1 RIT SYSTEM $3,207.76 1 $3,207.76

TRUE NORTH L3 RIT BAG $244.63 1 $244.63

MSA G1 60 Min 4500PSI RIT Bottle $1,156.15 1 $1,156.15

MSA G1 ADAPTER ASSEMBLY - QC TO 1/4" NPT $349.43 3 $1,048.29

APR ADAPTER (large single canister model) $83.22 26 $2,163.72

CBRN CANISTER $59.94 26 $1,558.44

P100 CANISTER (20 pack) $332.48 2 $664.96

LIGHTING X MASK BAG (black) $13.50 0 $0.00

SOFT DUFFLE BAGS (black) $82.55 0 $0.00

TOTAL LOCAL 

NON-GRANT 

FUNDED  COST

$15,240.41

SEATED 

POSITIONS

Amount to be invoiced to the City of Bloomfield Hills

Invoice description to be - FEMA AFG SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012 Local Match Amount

Amount to be invoiced to the City of Bloomfield Hills

Invoice description to be - Non-Grant Funded Additional SCBA System Equipment



Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Regional Cooperative Purchase

through the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program

Grant Application # EMW-2020-FG-11012

FARMINGTON - FEMA SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012

SCBA (1 harness, 2 bottles, 1  mask) COST QTY TOTAL

4500 PSI SCBA, STANDARD HARNESS, CHEST STRAP, EXTENDAIRE II, ADJUSTABLE SWIVELING 

LUMBAR, RECHARGEABLE BATTERY, PURGE COVER REGULATOR, BUDDY BREATHING QUICK 

CONNECT, AND VOICE BOX INTEGRATED INTO PACK STRAP

$4,926.40 20 $98,528.00 22

4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 40 $37,615.60

FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 20 $5,504.40

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 4 $1,100.88

0.1 TOTAL COST $142,748.88

0.1 FEDERAL 

FUNDING 

ASSITANCE

$129,396.52

LOCAL MATCH 

AMOUNT

$13,352.36

FARMINGTON - NON-GRANT FUNDED ADDITIONAL SCBA SYSTEM EQUIPMENT

ADDITION OF MSA G1 TIC OPTION $830.90 9 $7,478.10

ADDITIONAL MSA G1  4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 0 $0.00

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 16 $4,403.52

MSA G1 RECHARGABLE BATTERY $275.35 12 $3,304.20

MSA G1 6 BANK RECHARGABLE BATTERY SMART CHARGER $533.30 2 $1,066.60

MSA G1 RIT SYSTEM $3,207.76 2 $6,415.52

TRUE NORTH L3 RIT BAG $244.63 2 $489.26

MSA G1 60 Min 4500PSI RIT Bottle $1,156.15 2 $2,312.30

MSA G1 ADAPTER ASSEMBLY - QC TO 1/4" NPT $349.43 2 $698.86

APR ADAPTER (large single canister model) $83.22 40 $3,328.80

CBRN CANISTER $59.94 40 $2,397.60

P100 CANISTER (20 pack) $332.48 2 $664.96

LIGHTING X MASK BAG (black) $13.50 40 $540.00

SOFT DUFFLE BAGS (black) $82.55 0 $0.00

TOTAL LOCAL 

NON-GRANT 

FUNDED  COST

$33,099.72

SEATED 

POSITIONS

Amount to be invoiced to the City of Farmington

Invoice description to be - FEMA AFG SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012 Local Match Amount

Amount to be invoiced to the City of Farmington

Invoice description to be - Non-Grant Funded Additional SCBA System Equipment



Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Regional Cooperative Purchase

through the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program

Grant Application # EMW-2020-FG-11012

HUNTINGTON WOODS - FEMA SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012

SCBA (1 harness, 2 bottles, 1  mask) COST QTY TOTAL

4500 PSI SCBA, STANDARD HARNESS, CHEST STRAP, EXTENDAIRE II, ADJUSTABLE SWIVELING 

LUMBAR, RECHARGEABLE BATTERY, PURGE COVER REGULATOR, BUDDY BREATHING QUICK 

CONNECT, AND VOICE BOX INTEGRATED INTO PACK STRAP

$4,926.40 12 $59,116.80 15

4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 24 $22,569.36

FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 12 $3,302.64

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 8 $2,201.76

0.1 TOTAL COST $87,190.56

0.1 FEDERAL 

FUNDING 

ASSITANCE

$77,637.91

LOCAL MATCH 

AMOUNT

$9,552.65

HUNTINGTON WOODS - NON-GRANT FUNDED ADDITIONAL SCBA SYSTEM EQUIPMENT

ADDITION OF MSA G1 TIC OPTION $830.90 2 $1,661.80

ADDITIONAL MSA G1  4500 PSI 45 MIN LOW PROFILE BOTTLE W/QUICK CONNECT $940.39 0 $0.00

ADDITIONAL FACEPIECE W/4PT HARNESS $275.22 8 $2,201.76

MSA G1 RECHARGABLE BATTERY $275.35 6 $1,652.10

MSA G1 6 BANK RECHARGABLE BATTERY SMART CHARGER $533.30 2 $1,066.60

MSA G1 RIT SYSTEM $3,207.76 1 $3,207.76

TRUE NORTH L3 RIT BAG $244.63 1 $244.63

MSA G1 60 Min 4500PSI RIT Bottle $1,156.15 1 $1,156.15

MSA G1 ADAPTER ASSEMBLY - QC TO 1/4" NPT $349.43 0 $0.00

APR ADAPTER (large single canister model) $83.22 0 $0.00

CBRN CANISTER $59.94 0 $0.00

P100 CANISTER (20 pack) $332.48 0 $0.00

LIGHTING X MASK BAG (black) $13.50 20 $270.00

SOFT DUFFLE BAGS (black) $82.55 2 $165.10

TOTAL LOCAL 

NON-GRANT 

FUNDED  COST

$11,625.90

SEATED 

POSITIONS

Amount to be invoiced to the City of Huntington Woods

Invoice description to be - FEMA AFG SCBA GRANT EMW-2020-FG-11012 Local Match Amount

Amount to be invoiced to the City of Huntington Woods

Invoice description to be - Non-Grant Funded Additional SCBA System Equipment



B5 

Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Village Manager Search Firm 
 
Date:   October 15, 2021            
 
The Personnel Committee has met and reviewed potential search firms to assist with the Village 
Manager hiring process.  The Committee will present more information on this matter during the 
October 19, 2021 Council meeting.  
 
Suggested resolution: 
Be it resolved, the Beverly Hills Village Council agrees to hire ___________________ to assist with the 
search process for a Village Manager at a cost not to exceed $___________ and authorizes 
Administration to execute an agreement with said firm subject to review by the Village Attorney.  Funds 
are available in Account 101-248-831.00 (Professional Services).  



Village of Beverly Hills ● 18500 W. 13 Mile Road, Beverly Hills, MI 48025 ● 248-646-6404 

 

 

To: Honorable President George; Village Council Members 
 Chris Wilson, Village Manager 
 
From:  Kristin Rutkowski, Village Clerk/Assistant Village Manager 
 
Subject: Manager’s Report 
 
Date:   October 15, 2021            
 
Village Manager Wilson is currently out of the office. He will present a verbal manager’s report at the 
October 19, 2021 regular Village Council meeting.   



Beverly Hills Public Safety 
Activity Report 

Oct. 01-14, 2021  

 

• The Public Safety Department is currently looking for 
applicants for Public Safety Officer.  Please visit our 
website, www.beverlyhillspolice.com to see if you 
qualify. 

• Please remember to slow down as schools are back in 
session.  The crossing guards are out there too.  Kudos 
to them and all that make this a safe community. 

• For more information on Coronavirus Disease and 
vaccine please visit;  
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html 
https://www.ready.gov/  

• https://www.Michigan.gov/coronavirus  
• https://www.oakgov.com/covid/Pages/default.aspx 
• https://oaklandcountyvaccine.com  

 

CALLS FOR SERVICE 

• 177 Calls for Service. 

• 58 Tickets issued. 

• 6 Arrests: 

• Crime Prevention in Huntley square Apartments. 

• Suspicious Vehicle on Buckingham. 

• Crime Prevention on Rutland. 

• Open Building found on Saxon. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School at drop off. 

• Medical on Wetherby. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile. 

• Noise Complaint at Detroit Country Day. 

• School Liaison at Groves’ football game. 

• Traffic Complaint on Chelton. 

• Extra Patrol at Oktoberfest OLQM. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Suspicious Vehicle on Buckingham. 

• Closed down Beverly Park. 

• Domestic Disturbance on 13 Mile. 

• Drunk driver arrested on Crossbow Drive without 
incident. 

http://www.beverlyhillspolice.com/
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://www.ready.gov/
http://www.michigan.gov/coronavirus
https://www.oakgov.com/covid/Pages/default.aspx
https://oaklandcountyvaccine.com/


• Medical on Dover Court. 

• Fire Alarm on Dunblaine. 

• Suspicious Person on Friartuck. 

• Animal Complaint on Birwood. 

• School Liaison at Groves Homecoming. 

• A driver was arrested for Driving While License 
Suspended on 13 Mile and Southfield, without incident. 

• Traffic Complaint on Verona and Greenfield. 

• Radar Detail on Evergreen. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile. 

• Beverly Park closed down. 

• Extra Patrol at groves High School. 

• Extra Patrol on Pierce and Beverly. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Extra Patrol on Beverly and Evergreen. 

• Radar Detail on Southfield. 

• Radar Detail on 13 Mile and Churchill. 

• Welfare Check on Devonshire. 

• Carbon Monoxide Alarm on Carlelder. 

• Found Property on Stafford. 

• Assist Motorist on Southfield. 

• Traffic Accident 13 Mile at Huntley Square. 

• Vehicle Lockout on Warwick. 

• Vehicle Lockout on Birwood. 

• Medical on Greenfield and Buckingham. 

• Car Seat Check at the station. 

• Extra Patrol at Detroit Country Day. 

• Traffic Accident at Greenfield and Verona. 

• Closed down Beverly Park. 

• Medical on Riverside. 

• Radar Detail at 13 Mile and Evergreen. 

• Extra Patrol on Churchill and Downing Place. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol on Norchester and Devonshire. 

• Fire Truck Inspections at the station. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile. 

• Animal Complaint on Bellvine Trail. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for drop off. 

• Suspicious Circumstance on Wetherby. 

• Welfare Check on pedestrian on 13 Mile. 

• Suspicious Circumstance at BP Gas Station. 

• Prisoner Transport from 46th District Court. 

• Extra Patrol on Beverly and Norchester. 

• Beverly School Extra Patrol at pick up. 



• Greenfield School Extra Patrol at pick up. 

• Assist Motorist on Embassy. 

• Suspicious Person on Beverly and Evergreen. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Riverview. 

• DWLS Arrest on Lahser and 13 Mile, without incident. 

• Beverly Park closed down. 

• Extra Patrol in Georgetown Sub. 

• Assist Motorist on 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Injury Accident on Lahser and Metamora. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for drop of. 

• Radar Detail on Greenfield. 

• Citizen assist on Bellvine Trail. 

• Traffic Accident on 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Medical on Hummel Court. 

• Medical on Buckingham. 

• Reckless Driving Complaint at Groves High School. 

• Traffic Accident Report at the Station. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for pick up. 

• Parking Complaint on Riverside. 

• School Liaison at Groves High School. 

• Animal Complaint in Huntley square apartments. 

• Traffic Accident on 14 Mile and Pierce. 

• Animal Complaint in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Radar Detail Lahser and Riverview. 

• Radar Detail on Pierce and 14 Mile. 

• Suspicious Vehicle on Amherst. 

• Extra Patrol Edgewood and Kirkshire. 

• Crossing Guard Detail at Beverly School. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School for drop off. 

• Medical on Warwick. 

• Welfare Check on Amherst. 

• Extra Patrol at Market Fresh Center. 

• Medical on Southfield. 

• Alarm on Beechwood. 

• Odor Investigation on East Valley Woods. 

• Radar Detail on Southfield. 

• Radar Detail on 14 Mile. 

• Extra Patrol 14 Mile and Birmingham. 

• Assist Royal Oak PD on Greenfield and 13 Mile. 

• Alarm on 14 Mile Road. 

• Assist Citizen on Sheridan. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for drop off. 

• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School for drop off. 

• Prisoner Transport from the 46th District Court. 



• Medical on Southfield. 

• Animal Complaint on Southfield. 

• Medical on Verona Court. 

• Operation Medicine Cabinet. 

• Injury Accident at Beverly & Southfield. A drunk driver 
was arrested without incident. 

• Medical on Birwood. 

• Civil Matter in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Carbon Monoxide Alarm on Birwood. 

• Alarm on Valley Oaks Drive. 

• Civil Matter in Huntley Square apartments. 

• Animal Complaint on Rutland. 

• Car Accident at Groves High School. 

• Alarm on Inglewood. 

• Animal Complaint on Sunnyslope. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Traffic Accident at 13 Mile and Lahser. 

• Assist Motorist at Lahser and 13 Mile. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for pick up. 

• Fraud on Beechwood. 

• Citizen Assist on Marguerite. 

• Lift Assist on Marguerite. 

• Peace Officer Standby in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Carbon Monoxide Alarm on Birwood. 

• Beverly Park closed down. 

• Suspicious Persons in Beverly Park. 

• DWLS Arrest on Southfield and Buckingham without 
incident. 

• Radar Detail on Beverly. 

• A driver was arrested for Driving While License 
Suspended on 13 Mile and Southfield without incident. 

• Suspicious Vehicle on Fairfax. 

• Sudden Death on Sunset Drive. 

• Suspicious Circumstances on Beverly. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Beaconsfield and Saxon. 

• Fire Alarm on Southfield. 

• Welfare Check on Marimoor. 

• Suspicious Person on Elizabeth. 

• Assist Southfield PD on 13 Mile. 

• Public relations at a Halloween Party Fire Engine on 
Robinhood. 

• Traffic Complaint on Allerton. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 



• Reckless Driving Complaint on Lahser. 

• Citizen Assist at Huntley Square East. 

• Medical at Mission Point. 

• Traffic Detail Greenfield and Beverly. 

• Suspicious Vehicle at Beverly Park. 

• Drunk driver was arrested at Evergreen and 13 Mile 
without incident. 

• Beverly Park closed down. 

• Alarm at Groves High School. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School. 

• Traffic Enforcement at Beverly and Norchester. 

• Traffic Accident Marguerite and Pierce. 

• Medical on Southview. 

• Suspicious Person at Groves High School. 

• Fraud Report on Birwood Street. 

• Turkey Complaint at Southfield and 13 Mile. 

• Fraud Report on Verona Circle. 

• Wires Down on Beverly and Evergreen. 

• Odor Investigation on Bellvine Trail. 

• Fire Truck Inspections. 

• Beverly Parked closed down. 

• Radar Detail Churchill and 13 Mile. 

• Road Hazard on Lahser. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for drop off. 

• Alarm on 13 Mile. 

• Extra Patrol at Market Fresh Center. 

• Medical on Sunset Drive. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly school for pick up. 

• Threats Complaint Report at the Station. 

• Extra Patrol at T.J.MAXX Center. 

• Wires Down on Beverly. 

• Assist Southfield with Accident on 13 Mile. 

• Crime Prevention at Beverly and Pierce. 

• Traffic Accident on 13 Mile and Lahser. 

• Officers arrested a subject for Driving While License 
Suspended at Southfield and 13 Mile Road, without 
incident. 

• Suspicious Circumstance on Woodhaven. 

• Extra Patrol at Detroit Country Day. 

• Extra Patrol in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol in Acacia Cemetery. 

• Extra Patrol in Rutland Subdivision. 

• Traffic Offense report on 14 Mile and Southfield. 

• Traffic Accident on 14 Mile and Lahser. 



• Extra Patrol at Greenfield School drop off. 

• Beverly School Crossing Guard Detail 

• Vehicle Lockout at Corners Shopping center. 

• Alarm on Wendbrook Lane. 

• Medical on Rivers Edge Court. 

• Wild Turkey Complaint at Books a Million. 

• Medical on Southfield Road. 

• Extra Patrol at Market Fresh Shopping Center. 

• Extra Patrol at Beverly School for pick up. 

• Animal Complaint in Huntley Square Apartments. 

• Extra Patrol at T.J.MAXX parking lot. 

• Wild Turkey Complaint 13 Mile and Southfield. 

• Trouble with Customer at KFC. 

• Medical on Robinhood. 

• Lift Assist on West Rutland. 

• Extra Patrol at Groves High School after hours. 

• Officers arrested a subject for Driving While License 
Suspended at 13 Mile and Southfield without incident. 

• Radar Detail on Lahser and Hillview. 

• Beverly Park closed down. 

• Suspicious Vehicle at Beverly Park. 

• Suspicious Persons on Southfield Road. 

• Extra Patrol at Berkshire School after hours. 

• Radar Detail on Southfield Road. 

• Welfare Check on Sunnyslope Street. 

• Extra Patrol at Apostolic Church after hours. 
 
 
 

• New FEMA Disaster Recovery Center opens in 

Southfield, will service residents after severe 

weather events Robin Murdoch, FOX210.6.21. A new 

disaster recovery center that will assist residents in 

Metro Detroit manage the fallout from flooding and 

extreme weather events will open in Southfield 

Wednesday. The new center will act as a resource for 

disaster victims, housing representatives from FEMA, 

the U.S. Small Business Administration, Michigan 

State Police, and others who can walk people through 

assistance programs and answer questions about how 

to make a home more disaster-resistant. The Oct. 6 

opening of the Disaster Recovery Center arrives only 



days after the application for getting financial help 

from the June floods this year was extended. After they 

were initially rejected for federal assistance after 

intense rain flooded homes across Southeast Michigan 

on June 25 and 26, damaged households in Oakland 

and Macomb counties were approved. The approval 

opens residents up to the opportunity of securing 

money for replacing important appliances while 

offering low-cost loans and grants for temporary 

housing and home repairs. The same residents also now 

qualify for federal disaster unemployment 

benefits. The deadline for applying for aid is Nov. 

12. The new FEMA facility in Southfield will be 

located inside the Parks and Rec facility on 26000 

Evergreen Road.  
 

FIRE & EMERGENCEY MEDICAL SERVICES. 
 

• 48 Fire/EMS reports reviewed. 

• 28 Fire training hours entered into ISO records. 

• 32 EMS training hours entered into continuing 
education records. 

• 5 Kitchen Suppression Inspection reports reviewed. 

• 11 training courses approved in the SMOKE system. 

• Bi-Weekly NFIRS data export uploaded to FEMA. 

• Supervise Platoon 3 and 4. 

• Attend South Oakland Fire Association meeting. 

• Attend OAKWAY/SOFA combined training meeting. 

• Attend and Chair Oakland County Training Committee 
meeting. 

• Attend Wednesday Wrap hosted by the State Fire 
Marshal. 

• Attend Oakland County Association of Arson and Fire 
Investigators quarterly training. 

• Attend Michigan Fire Fighters Training Council meeting 

• 2 EMS Continuing Education Training audits 
conducted for re-licensure. 

• Submit EQIP Data Reporting Form - 2021 Quarter 3 to 
the Oakland County Medical Control Authority. 

 
 

https://www.fox2detroit.com/news/fema-disaster-assistance-for-macomb-and-oakland-county-residents


 

• Complete and submit the Partner Agencies Purchasing 
Committee FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant 
(AFG) project budget and purchase request. 

 
 
DETECTIVE ACTIVITY 
 

• 207 calls for service reviewed and closed. 

• School Liaison Officers provided a presentation To 
Greenfield and Beverly Elementary school. 

• Dropped off cell phone and search warrant to Oakland 
County Computer Crimes. 

• Sent drunk driver and driving while license suspend to 
Oakland County Prosecutor for warrants. 

• Domestic Violence warrant arraignment at 46 District 
Court. 

• Det/Sgt Baller attended Groves football homecoming 
dance. 

• Basic airway training. 

• Chest trauma training. 

• Oakland County denied. 

• Subpoena obtained for Fraud case. 

• Subpoena obtained for ID Theft case. 

• Subpoena obtained for Hit and Run accident. 

• Traffic conference at the 46 District t court 

• Officer wellbeing training. 

• Sent stolen car complaint for warrant at Prosecutor 
office. 

• Picked up evidence from Oakland county forensic lab. 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) is pleased to inform 
the Public Safety Department of Beverly Hills will receive an 
award under the fiscal year of (FY) 2021 Patrick Leahy 
Bulletproof Vest Partnership solicitation.  The funds have 
been posted to our account.  More details to follow.   
 
 

 



September 25, 2021 
DR-4607-MI NR-028 
FEMA News Desk: 312-408-4455,  
FEMA-R5-news-desk@fema.dhs.gov 

1 

News Release 
Residents of Macomb and Oakland Counties May Now Be Eligible 
for FEMA Assistance  
CHICAGO – Michigan homeowners and renters in Macomb and Oakland counties, who have disaster-related losses 
from the severe storms and flooding of June 25-26, 2021, may now apply for federal disaster assistance.  

Federal assistance may include grants for temporary lodging and home repairs and other programs to help with 
uninsured or underinsured necessary expenses and serious, unmet needs that resulted from the disaster.    

FEMA offers multiple options to apply: 

• Call 800-621-3362. If you use a relay service, such as video relay service (VRS), captioned telephone
service or others, give FEMA the number for that service. The toll-free numbers are open from 7 a.m. to 11
p.m. ET, seven days a week.

• Go online to www.DisasterAssistance.gov.
• Download the FEMA App.

If you live in Macomb or Oakland county and have already registered with FEMA since July 15, 2021, you do not 
need to apply again. If you’re unsure whether you’ve submitted an application, call the FEMA Helpline at 800-621-
3362 to verify your status. 

When you apply for assistance, have the following information readily available: 

• A current phone number where you can be contacted;
• Your address at the time of the disaster and the address where you are now staying;
• Your Social Security number;
• A general list of damage and losses, and
• Private insurance information, if available.

Individuals in Washtenaw and Wayne counties can already apply for help if they have uninsured or underinsured 
losses from the late June disaster. The deadline to apply is October 13, 2021. For more information about 
Michigan’s disaster recovery, visit FEMA’s website www.fema.gov/disaster/4607.  

Info Item

http://www.disasterassistance.gov/
https://www.fema.gov/about/news-multimedia/mobile-app-text-messages
http://www.fema.gov/disaster/4607


Learn more at fema.gov August 2021    2 

         
               ### 

Disaster recovery assistance is available without regard to race, color, religion, nationality, sex, age, disability, 
English proficiency, or economic status. Reasonable accommodations, including translation and American Sign 
Language interpreters via Video Relay Service will be available to ensure effective communication with applicants 
with limited English proficiency, disabilities, and access and functional needs. If you or someone you know has been 
discriminated against, call FEMA toll-free at 800-621-3362 (including 711 or Video Relay). If you are deaf, hard of 
hearing or have a speech disability and use a TTY, call 800-462-7585. 

FEMA’s mission is helping people before, during, and after disasters.  



Species

Garlic Mustard, 
Dame’s Rocket

Reed Canary Grass

Swallow-wort, spp.*

Knotweeds**

Asian Bittersweet

Flowering Rush

Phragmites

Purple Loosestrife

Invasive Shrubs/Vines

Trea
tm

en
t

Jan Feb
Marc

h
April

May
June July

Aug
Sept

Oct Nov
Dec

Oakland County CISMA Recommended Invasive Species Treatment Timing
Whether you treat invasive species on your property or hire a contractor to do treatment, it is important to apply the correct treatment method in the correct time 
of year. This calendar is a planning tool that provides a general overview of the correct time of year for various treatment types and species. Before selecting a 
herbicide and treatment type, be sure to review the details as more exact timing is often required based on the selected herbicide. Foliar spray stops at or several 
weeks before the first frost. This table displays appropriate timing for southeast Michigan.

Hand Pull

Foliar Spray

Biocontrol

Cut Stump/Basal Bark

Invasive shrubs/vines include: Glossy and common buckthorn, autumn olive, invasive honeysuckles, 
multiflora rose, Asian bittersweet, Norway maple, tree of heaven, black alder, Japanese barberry. 

If you find giant hogweed or wild parsnip, DO NOT TOUCH the plants! Send CISMA a photo and 
we'll help you with treatment. If you have European frog-bit, take a photo and contact the CISMA 
for treatment assistance. 

*Optimal swallow-wort treatment time is June through early July, before seeds mature. 

**Knotweeds include: Japanese knotweed and giant knotweed. July to mid-August treatment with 
herbicides Clearcast or Milestone, later August and September effective with other herbicides. 

Recommended Treatment Times

PossibleTreatment Times

Non-Recommended Treatment Times

This project was funded by the Michigan Invasive Species Grant Program (www.michigan.gov/invasives)

Info Item

https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/garlic-mustard/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/swallow-wort/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/knotweed/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/asian-bittersweet/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/flowering-rush/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/phragmites/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/purple-loosestrife/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/woody-invasives/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/woody-invasives/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/european-frog-bit/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/swallow-wort/
https://oaklandinvasivespecies.org/knotweed/


1

Kristin Rutkowski

From: Comcast Heartland <Comcast_Heartland@comcast.com>
Sent: Friday, October 15, 2021 10:19 AM
Cc: Mazurek, Kyle
Subject: Comcast Programming Advisory

Good morning, 

As part of our ongoing commitment to keep you and our customers informed about changes to 
Xfinity TV services, we wanted to update you that effective November 16, 2021, G4 will be added to 
Digital Starter and the Entertainment Genre Pack (channel 1413). G4 will feature gaming and pop 
culture shows plus live special programming.  

HD service and IP-capable equipment is required to view the channel. A limited number of customers 
may still have older devices that do not support these channels and will not be able to view them 
until the devices are replaced. 

Please feel free to contact me at 734-359-2038 if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Kyle V. Mazurek 
Manager of External Affairs 
Comcast, Heartland Region 
41112 Concept Drive 
Plymouth, MI 48170 

Info Item


	Agenda 10192021 (color)
	C1 Draft Council Minutes 10052021
	C2 Review and file bills recapped 10.11.2021
	09.13.2021 Cover Sheet
	CHK

	C3 Set Public Hearing CDBG
	B1 ZBA Appointment
	B2 Buy-A-Brick Memos and attachments
	B2 Buy-A-Brick Memo
	B2 Memo to President George & Village Council -- Brick Paver Fundariser -- 10.14.21
	Village of Beverly Hills Customer Agreement Bricks
	B2 Buy A Brick Email
	11 Brick Markers


	B3 Memos and Docs Goddard
	B3 vc report goddard v2 10-19-2021
	B3 Memo to President George & Village Council -- Goodard School Development Agreement -- 10.14.21
	B3 Resolution Goddard School Development Agreement -- 10.14.21
	B3 Development Agreement w attachment 10-19
	DA_KLMsigned
	Legal Description
	SITE DRAWINGS 8-12-21 reduced
	Sheets and Views
	Model

	C-8.0 DRAINAGE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-7.0 SESC PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-6.5 DETENTION SYSTEM DETAILS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-6.4 DETAILS-4.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-6.3 DETAILS-3.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-6.2 DETAILS-2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-6.1 NOTES + DETAILS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-5.0 UTILITY PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-4.0 GRADING PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-3.1 PUBLIC OPEN SPACE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-3.0 SITE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-2.0 DEMO.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	C-1.0 TOPO.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	GSI-2.0 Playground Details-2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24x36
	PLOT
	FULL
	ZZZ



	GSI-1.0 Playground Details-1.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	24x36
	PLOT
	FULL
	ZZZ



	WMD - Water Main Standard Detail Sheets - ALL_Part4.pdf
	STD-Wtr4of7

	WMD - Water Main Standard Detail Sheets - ALL_Part3.pdf
	STD-Wtr3of7

	WMD - Water Main Standard Detail Sheets - ALL_Part2.pdf
	STD-Wtr2of7

	WMD - Water Main Standard Detail Sheets - ALL_Part1.pdf
	STD-Wtr1of7


	Proposed Construction Phasing
	20210728 - conceptual image pkg


	B4 SCBA Consortium Grant Purchase Memo (002)
	B5 Search Firm Memo
	Manager's Report Memo
	VBH Public Safety Activity Oct1-142021
	Info Item - FEMA Assistance
	News Release

	Info Item - Treatment-Calendar
	Info Item Comcast



